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lNDEPENDENT AUDlтoRs, REPoRT

То the Board of Directors and the Management Board of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSc

AUditorý' Report

opinion

We have audited the accompanying fiпапсiа[ statements of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC
(hereinafter - the Bank), which comprise the statement of financial position aS of 31 DесеmЬеr
202З, and statement of profit or [oss and other comprehensive iпсоmе, statement of changes iп
equity апd statement of cash flows for the уеаr then ended, inctuding а summary of significant
accounting policieý and other exptanatory notes.

lп очr орiпiоп, the accompanying financial statements present fаir[у, iп а[[ mаtеriаt respects, the
financia[ position of the Bank as of 3'| December 2023, as we[[ as its financial реrfоrmапсе and саsh
flows fоr the year then ended, iп ассоrdапсе with lnternational Financia[ Reporting Standards
(lFRSS).

Basls for opinion

We conducted оur audit in ассоrdапсе with lnternationaI standards оп Auditing (lSAs). ОUr
responSibiIitieS under those standards аrе fUrther described in the ДUditor\ Responsibilities fоr the
Дчdit of the Fiпапсiоl stotements section of оUr rероrt.

We аrе independent of the Bank iп accordance with the lпtеrпаtiопаl Ethics standords Board |оr
Дссоuпtопts' code о| Ethics |оr Pro|essional Дссоuпtапts (lESBA code) and ethicat requirements
that аrе rеtечапt to our audit of the financial statements iп Kazakhstan, and we have fulfitted очr
other ethicaI responsibi[ities iп ассоrdапсе with these requirements апd the lE5BA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is Sufficient and аррrорriаtе to provide а basis for оur
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with GоYеrпапсе for the Financial
statementý

The management is responsib[e for the preparation and fair presentation of the financiaI Statements
in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Fiпапсiа[ Reporting Standards апd for internal control, as
mапаgеmепt determines is necessary to епаЬ[е the preparation of а financiaI statement that is free
frоm materia[ misstatement, whether due to frачd оr еrrоr.

lп рrераriпg the financiat statements, management is responsible fоr assessing the Вапk's abi[ity to
continue aS а going сопсеrп, disctosing, as appticable, mаttегs relating to going сопсеrп and using
the going сопсеrп basis of accounting, un[ess management either intends to tiquidate the Bank оr
to cease operations оr has по realistic alternative but to do so.

Тhоsе charged with gочеrпапсе аrе responsible for overseeing the Bank's financiaI rероrtjпg process.

Auditor's Responsibilities fоr the Audit of the Financial Statements

Оuг objectives аrе to obtain rеаsопаЬlе аssчrапсе about Whеthеr the financiaI statements as а
whote аrе frее frоm material misstatement, whether due to fraud оr еrrоr and to issue ап auditor's
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rероrt that includes очr opinion. Reasonable assurance is а high tevet of assurance but iS not а
gчаrапtее that an audit conducted in ассоrdапсе with lnternationat Standards оп Auditing Witt
a[ways detect а mаtеriаl misstatement when it exists. Misstatements сап arise from fraud or еrrоr
and are considered materiat if, individuatty оr iп the aggregate, they could rеаsопаЫу Ье expected
to iпflчепсе the economic decisions of чsеrs taken based оп these financial statements.

As а part of ап audit in ассоrdапсе with lnternationat Standards оп Auditing, we exercise
professionaI jUdgement and maintain professionaI scepticism throughout the audit. We a[so:

о ldentify and assess the risks of materiat misstatement of the financia[ statements, whether
due to fraud оr еrrоr, design and реrfоrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is Sufficient and appropriate to provide а basis for our opinion.

Тhе risk of not detecting а material misstatement resutting from fraud is higher thап the опе
rеsчltiпg frоm еrrоr, as fraud may involve col[usion, forgery, intentionat omissions,
misгерrеsепtаtiопS, оr the override of interna[ сопtrоt;

. obtain ап understanding of iпtеrпаl сопtrоl rе[ечапt to the audit to design audit procedures
that аrе appropriate iп the сirсчmstапсеs, but поt for the рчrроsе of expressing ап opinion оп the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal controt;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting po[icies used and the reasonableness of
ассочпtiпg estimates and related disclosures made Ьу management;

. conclude оп the appropriateness of management's use of the going сопсеrп basis of accounting
апd, based оп the audit evidence obtained, whether а material uncertainty exists retated to events
оr conditions that may cast significant doubt оп the Bank's abitity to сопtiпче as а going сопсеrп. lf
we conc[ude that а material uncertainty exists, we аrе required to draw attention iп очr auditor's
report to the related disctosures in the financial statements оr, if such disctosures аrе inadequate,
to modify очг opinion. Оцr conclusions аrе based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's rероrt. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as а going сопсеrп;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, Structure апd content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, апd whether the financial Statements rерrеsепt the underlying transactions and
events in а mаппеr that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with gочеrпапсе regarding, among оthеr matterS, the р[аппеd
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies iп
internal controt that we identify during очг audit.

Тhе engagement раrtпеr оп the audit rеSчltiпg in this independent auditor's rероrt i

Auditor G. Zh. Zhari

Auditor's Qua[ification Certificate
No.0000217 dated 22.12.20'l4 issued
Ьу the Quatification Commission for
certification of the audi rs

BDo Qazaqstan LLP

State license No.21012748 issued on 19 Маrсh 2021
Ьу the Committee for lпtеrпаl State Audit of the
Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

;

Pl'19'Aprit 2024

Atmaty city

Director R,M.











SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NOTES ТО ТНЕ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended З1 December 202З
( th ousa nd Kazokhstan tenge,)

1. BAсKGRoUND
(а) organization and primary activities

(Ь) operatingenvironment
Gепеrаl

The Вапk was founded iп the Repubtic of Kazakhstan in 2008 as а joint stock соmрапу. The рrimаry
activities of the Вапk consist in the attraction of deposits and the mаiпtепапсе of customer accounts,
toans grantin8 апd issue of guarantees, provision of cash and settlement services, making trапsасtiопs
Иth securities and foreign счrrепсу. The Bank's activities аrе regulated Ьу the National Bank of the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan (RK NB).

The officiat status of the Вапk as а tegal entity is established through the state registration with the
Ministry of Justice of the Repubtic and Kazakhstan (certificate of the state registration of а tegal entity
No, 50З7-1900-АО (FР), the right to Ье engaged in banking established Ьу the Аgепсу of the Repubtic of
Kazakhstan for regutation and supervision of financiaI market and financiaI organizations (АFS) (ticense
to settle banking апd other transactions No. 1.1.258 dated 28 November 2008).

lп January 2015, in соппесtiоп with the entry into fоrсе of the LaW of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan on
дmепdmепts апd дItеrоtiопs to Сеrtоiп Lеgislоtiче Дсв or the Republic of Kazokhston Сопсеrпiпg the
ДUthorizotion system, the designation of а type of banking trапsасtiоп 'related to organization of foreign
сurrепсу ехсhапgе trапsасtiопs' was changed to the 'organization of foreign currency exchange
transactions', inc[uding the organization of fоrеigп exchange cash transactionS, Iicense of the Вапk was
re-issued (License of the Nationat Вапk of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan No. 1 .1.258 dated z0.01.201 5). lп
January 2017, due to а change of the tegat address, the license of the Bank was re-issued (License of the
National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan No. 1 .1 .258 dated 27.01 .2017).

Legal address of the Вапk: З8, Dostyk Ave., Atmaty city, 050010, RepuЫic of Kazakhstan.

The Вапk has по branches. Тhе most of assets and tiabitities are in thе Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Вапk is wholly owned Ьу Shinhan Bank JsC (Seout, RерuЫiс of Korea) (hereinafter rеfеrrеd to as the
Раrепt Bank оr the 5harehotder). Тhе ultimate parent соmрапу is Shinhan Fiпапсiа[ Group Со. Ltd., Which
iS entitted to direct, in its sole discretion and in its own interests, the activities of the Вапk. More details
оп related party transactions аrе disclosed in Note 29.

The Bank's activities аrе carried out mainty in Kazakhstan. Accordingly, the Вапk is exposed to the risks
inherent iп Kazakhstan's economic апd financial markets, which exhibit the characteristics of ап
еmеrgiпg market есопоmу. The tegat system, tax system and tegal framework сопtiпuе to evotve but аrе
subject to varying interpretations апd frequent сhапgеs which, аlопg with other lesal and financial
barriers, exacerbate the problems faced Ьу organizations operating in Kazakhstan.

Есопоmiс factors

0чеr the past few уеаrs, the wortd and financial markets have experienced а long list of disturbances.
lnter alia, they include the coronavirus pandemic, the есопоmiс recession iп China, rising епеrgу prices,
чпrеst in lrап апd а пчmЬеr of other countries, gtobat tightenin8 of monetary poticy, the Wаr between
Russia апd Ukraine апd the Palestinian- lsraeti conflict.

The паtчrаl сочrsе апd organic devetopment of the economies of the leading countries were disrupted.
Uncertainty of future events, volatitity iп raw and capital markets, togisticat problems led to financiat
difficutties for mапу companies, difficutties in forecasting and budgeting the activities of organizations
in various sectors of the есопоmу.

The aggravation of the geopotitical Situation led to the ехрапsiоп of sanctions and restrictions of а
пumЬеr of countries against certain sectors of the Russian есопоmу, Russian companies and citizens; а
пumЬеr of internationaI companies suspended or terminated their business activities in the Russian
Federation, as well as ceased to cooperate with the соmрапiеs associated With the Russian Federation.
The management of the Bank monitors the devetopment of the situation and takeS all necessary actions
to reduce and tече[ emerging risks, ensure uninterrupted activities and maintain the financiat stabitity
of the Вапk.
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS fоr the уеаr ended 31 December 202З
(thousond Kozakhstoп tеп9е )

The geopotitical crisis continues to have а negative impact on the devetopment of the world есопоmу.
Under the рrеssurе of rising energy prices апd growing uncertainty, the есопоmiеs of mапу countries аrе
slowing down. Weaker economic activities аrе confirmed Ьу business activity indicators. The gtobaI
inflation rеmаiпs at histoгical highs. However, against the backdrop of а stight decrease in wortd prices
for oil апd other епеrgу resources, the overall gtobal inflation continued to decline in аппuа[ terms iп
202З, without а significant dectine in есопоmiс activity.

Оп 17 NоVеmЬеr 2023, the international rating аgепсу - Fitch Ratings - affirmed the sочеrеigп credit
rating of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan at ВВВ, With а Stable outlook. Kazakhstan's strong fiscal position
and significant externaI provisions, which have contributed to its resiIience to externaI factors, сопtjпче
to Ье the key drivers for maintaining Kazakhstan's credit rating. According to Fitch Ratings, the foreign
ехсhапgе reserves, including Iiquid assets of the Nationat Fund of the Republic of Kazakhstan, increased
in January-october 2023 Ьу ,17% and amounted to ЗЗ% of GDP, Net foreign assets amounted to З2.З% of
GDP, which is significantty higher thап the median for countries with similar credit rаtiпgs. At the same
time, the country's dependence on commodit,ies, high inftation rate апd ап underdeveloped economic
policy рrоgrаm are noticed. Ассоrdiпg to the аgепсу, the mеаsчrеs taken to diversify the есопоmу take
time, given the difficutties associated With the situation in the economic sphere. Fitch estimates that
ехрапsiоп of activities at the Tengiz field (postponed UntiI the епd of 2024) wi[[ Ьаtапсе the impact of
the geopoIitical Situation in the region.

The anatysts of Fitch Ratings predict а decrease in inflation in 2024 to 9.5%. The аgепсу emphasizes the
commitment of the National Bank to а floating ехсhапgе rate, Which contributes to the absorption of
negative factors.

lп addition, the oit and gas sector in the Republic of Kazakhstan remains subject to the influence of
potiticat, legistative, tax and regutatory changes in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The prospects for
есопоmiс stabitity of the Republic of Kazakhstan largety depend оп the effectiveness of economic
measures taken Ьу the Government, as well as оп the development of the tegal, regutatory and potiticat
systems, specificatty оп the circumstances that are Ьеуопd the controt of the Bank.

The ассоmрапИпg financiaI statements present the assessment of the Bank's mапаgеmепt of the роssiЫе
impact of current conditions оп the performance and financiat position of the Bank. Ноwечеr, the impact
of сhапgеs in the economic situation оп the future performance and financial position of the Bank is
счrrепttу difficutt to determine.

Z, FRAMEWORK FОR PREPARAT|ON ОF ТНЕ FlNANC|AL STATEMENTS

(а) Statement of сопfоrmапсе to lFRSs

The accompanying financial statements hаче Ьееп рrераrеd iп ассоrdапсе With lпtеrпаtiопаt Fiпапсiаt
Reporting Standards (lFRss) as аррrочеd Ьу the lnternationat Accounting standards Board (lAS Board).

(Ь) Basis of evaluation

These financial statements have Ьееп prepared iп accordance with the actuat cost principte, with the
exception of fiпапсiа[ aSsets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income.

(с) Fчпсtiопаl and presentation счrrепсу
The functiona( сurrепсу of the Bank is the Kazakhstan tenge (hereinafter - the tenge), which, being the
nationaI currency of the RepUbtic of Kazakhstan, best reflects the economic essence of most of the Вапk's
operations апd related circumstances affecting its activitieS.

Тhе Kazakhstan tenge is also the presentation сurrепсу of these financjat statements. Atl data presented
in the tenge have Ьееп rounded to the пеаrеst thousand tenge untess otherwise stated.

(d) Use of professional Judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

Тhе preparation of the financia[ Statements in ассоrdапсе with the requirements of lFRSs requires the
mапаgеmепt to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
po(icies and the amount of assets and tiabitities, income and expenses presented in the financial
statements. ActuaI resUlts mау differ from these estimates.

1,t
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NOTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 202З
( thouso п d Kazakhs to п te пgе )

The est,imates апd uпdеrlуiпg assumPtions аrе гечiеwеd оп а regular basis. Тhе estimate adjustments
аrе recognized iп the rePorting period in which the estimates are revised апd iп апу subsequent periods
which they affect.

The information rеgаrdiпg significant estimation uncertainties and critical reasonabte judgments in
арр[уiп8 the accounting policies is provided iп the following notes:

. Note 15 - estimation of [оап impairment;

. Note 'lб - ctassification of financiaI assets at amortized cost;

. Note з0 - fair value of financiaI instruments.

(е) Going сопсеrп

The ассоmрапЛпg financiaI statements have Ьееп prepared on the assumption of а going сопсеrп, Which
impties the disposal of assets and the settlement of tiabitities in the course of the ordinary business of
the Bank. lп making this estimation, the Bank's mапаgеmепt considered а wide rапgе of information
regarding счrrепt and future economic conditions, inctuding projections for cash flows, earnings and
capitaI resources.

3. MATER|AL lNFORл.tАтlоN oN AccOUNTlNG POLlclES

The accountjng poticies described below have Ьееп applied Ьу the Bank consistently throughout the
reporting periods presented in these financjat statements.

(а) Fоrеigп exchange transactions

The foreiSn exchange transactions аrе translated into the functionat сurrепсу of the Bank at the
exchange rates рrечаi[iп8 оп the dates of transactions.

Мопеtаry assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currency at the rероrtiпg date аrе transtated into
the functiona[ сurrепсу at the ехсhапgе rаtе prevaiting at the reporting date. Pгofit оr loss frоm
transactions Иth monetary assets and [iabilities denominated in foreign сurrепсу is а difference between
the amortized cost in the functionat сurrепсу at the beginning of the реriоd adjusted Ьу the amount of
interest charged at the effective rate апd payments during the period and amortized cost in foreign
currency transtated into the functionat сurrепсу at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabitities denominated iп foreign счrrепсу measured at fair value are
translated into the functional сUrrепсу at the ехсhапgе rates prevailing оп the dates of fair value
measurement. Nоп-mопеtаrу assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign счrrепсу and reported at
actual costs are translated into the functional счrrепсу at the exchange rate prevailing оп а transaction
date.

The foreign ехсhапgе differences resulting frоm translation into the foreign счrrепсу аrе recognized in
profit оr loss,

(ь)

(i)

Financial instruments

Rесоgпitiоп апd mеоsчrеmепt of fiпопсiоl iпstrumепts

оi,чеi,ов

Fiпапсiа[ assets and financial liabitities are recognized in the statement of financiaI position of the Вапk
whеп the Bank becomes а contracting party to the underlying financial instrument. The Bank reports
regutar acquisitions and disposals of financial assets and tiabitities using the accounting method at the
sett[ement date. Financial instruments acquired in thiS way, which will subsequent[y Ье measured at fair
value, are accounted for in the same way as the acquired instruments from the time of conc[usion of а
transaction until the setttement date set.

Fiпапсiаl assets апd financiat tiabitities аrе injtialty reported at fair чаlче. Transaction costs directty
attributable to the acquisition оr issue of financial assets and financial tiabitities (other than financial
assets апd financiat tiabitities reported at fair чаlче through profit оr toss (FVTPL)) respectively increase
or decrease the fair чаtче of financial assets оr financial tiabitities at initial rесоgпitiоп. Тrапsасtiоп
costs direct(y attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial tiabitities reported at fair
value through profit оr loss are reported directty in profit or [oss. The accounting principles Used to
subsequently mеаsчrе the value of financial assets and financiat tiabitities are disctosed in the retevant
ассочпtiпg po[icies described below.

12



FiлопсiоI dsýets

Atl financiat assets аrе recognized and derecognised оп а date of trапsасtiоп when а financial asset is
purchased or sold under а contract the terms of which require detivery of the financial asset within the
time limit5 set Ьу the relevant market and аrе initiatty measured at fair vatue, plus transaction costs,
exctuding those financial assets that are c[assified as measured at fair чаlче through profit оr toss.
Transaction costs direct[y attributab[e to the acquisition of financiat assets c[assified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss аrе recognized immediately in profit оr [oss.

Al[ recognized financial assets that аrе withjn the scope of IFRS 9 Fiпапсiоl lnstruments must Ье
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based оп the Bank's business model fоr managing
financial a5sets and the contractuaI cash ftow characteristics of financiat assets.

At the same time:

. Hotding ап asset to rесеiче controctuol cash |[ows,

This business model assumes that the financiat assets аrе managed to realize cash flows Ьу receiving
payments of principat and interest over the life of the financiat instrument.

Under this business model, holding а financial asset to matuПty is а priority, but еаrtу disposal is not
prohibited.

. Ноldiпg оп osset to rесеivе controctual cosh flows опd sell fiпапсiаI ossets,

This business model assumes that the management of financial assets is aimed at both receiving
contractuat cash flows and selting financiaI assets. Within this business mode[, the receipt of cash from
the sate of а financial asset is а priority, Which is characterized Ьу а higher frequency апd volume of
sales compared to the business model of 'Holding ап asset to rесеiче contractual cash ftows'.

. НоIdiпg оп osset |ог оthеr purposes.

Within this business modet, the 8oal of managin8 the financiat assets сап Ье:

а. mапаgеmепt fоr the рчrроsе of reatizing cash ftows through the sale of financial assets;

Ь. tiquidity management to meet daily funding needs;

с. а portfo[io the mапаgеmепt and performance evatuation of which аrе based on а fair value; and

d. а portfolio that meets the 'hetd for trade' definition. Financial assets are considered to Ье hetd
for trade if they have been acquired principatty for the рчrроsе of setting iп the пеаr term (up to
180 days), gепеrаtiпg Short-term profits, or аrе financiat derivatives (with the exception of а
financiat gчаrапtее оr derivative financiat instruments, which have Ьееп identified as hedgin8
in5trument).

lп ассоrdапсе with |FRS 9, the Bank's financiat assets аrе classified as fo[[ows:

. [оапs 8ranted to customers that are ctassified as assets measured at amortized cost аrе held йthin
а business model aimed at receiving contractual cash flows that are sotely payments of principal
апd interest оп principat outstanding and which inc(ude sotety payments оп account of principat
and interest (SPPl);

. cash and cash equivalents include cash banknotes and coins, unrestricted balances (nostro
accounts) with the RK NB and other banks, as wetl as highty tiquid financial assets With original
maturities of less than З months that are not subject to significant risk of changes in fair vatue and
аrе used Ьу the Bank to settle current liabilities. Cash and cash equivatents аrе reported at
amortized cost in the statement of financiat position;

. interbank loans/deposits, REPo transactions are classified, as а rч[е, aS assets measured at
amortized cost since they аrе managed within а business model aimed at receiving contractuat
cash flows that inctude SPPl;

. debt securities may Ье classified into апу of thrее ctassification categories based оп the chosen
business mode[ апd SPPl test comp[iance;

. equity secuпties аrе c[assified, аý а ru[е, into the category of instruments measured at fair vatue
With changes therein reported iп profit оr loss for the period; and

1з
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, SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS for the уеаr ended З1 DесеmЬеr 202Зi 1thousond Kazokhston tenge)

. trading secuгit,ies and derivative financial instruments аrе classified into the category of financiat
assets measured at fair чаtче with changes therein reported iп profit оr toss for the period,

FiпапсiаI lidbilities
Financiat tiabitities are classified as either financiat tiabitities at fair vatue through profit and loss оr
other financiaI tiabitities.

А financiat tiabitity is classified as he[d for trade if:

. it is accepted for the primary purpose of rерчrсhаsе in the пеаr future;

. when initiatty recognized, it is а part of а portfotio of identified financial instruments that аrе
managed Ьу the Вапk as а single portfotio that has а recent history of short-term purchases апd
reselling, or

. it is а derivative instrument that is not classified and js not used as а hedging instrument.

А financial tiabitity other than financiat tiabitity оr contingent consideration that mау Ье paid Ьу а
customer iп а business combination hetd for trade may Ье qualified as FvТРL financial tiabjlity at the
time of recognition if:

. the Use of such а classification eliminates оr significantty reduces imbatances in the measurement
of or ассочпtiпg for the assets or tiabilities that might otherwise аrisе;

. а financiat tiabitity is а part of а group of financial assets оr financial tiabitities оr а group of
financjal assets and tiabitities that are managed апd measured on the basis of а fair value in
accordance Иth the Bank's documented risk mапаgеmепt оr investment strategy and the
information about such а group of financial tiabitities is presented within the organization оп this
basis; or

. а financial tiabitity is а part of an instrument сопtаiпiпg опе оr mоrе embedded derivatives, and
|FRS 9 attows the instrument as а whote (asset or tiability) to Ье ctassified as measured at fair value
with recognizing changes therein iп the statement of profit or [oss.

Fiпапсiаl assets апd financia[ tiabitities measured at fair value through profit оr toss аrе accounted for
in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value аrе reported in net toss/(profit)
оп financiat assets апd tiabitities measUred at fair vaIue through profit оr loss. lnterest earned or incurred
is recognized а5 interest iпсоmе or ехрепsе, as appropriate, in accordance Иth the terms of а contract,
while dividend income is recorded in other income when the right to receive dividends is estabtished.

oebt iлstrumeлts at amortized cost or at foir value thгочgh оthеr соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе

The Вапk assesses the ctassification and measurement of а financial asset based оп the characteristics
provided Ьу the cash flow contract and the Bank's business model used to mапаgе the asset.

То ctassify and measure ап asset at amortized cost оr at fair vatue through other comprehensive income,
the terms of the rеlечапt contract must provide for the оссurrепсе of cash flows that inctude sotely
payment of principat and interest on the principat outstanding.

Whеп revising the contractual cash flows for comptiance with the specified requirements, the principal
outstanding is considered as а fair vatue of а financiat asset at its initial recognition. During the life of а
financial asset, the principal debt may change (for example, in the case of principal payments). lnterest
incIudes consideration for the time vaIue of mопеу, for the credit risk of principat remaining outStanding
for а specified period of time, and for other поrmаt risks and costs associated with tending, as well as а
profit margin. The payments of principal апd interest аrе measured in а счrrепсу in which а financial
asset is denominated.

The contractual cash ftows, which inctude sotety payments of рriпсiраt and interest, compty with the
terms of ап Undertying [оап contract. contractual terms that give rise to гisks or volatility in contractuat
cash ftows that аrе not related to the uпdеrtуiпg tоап contract, such as share оr commodity price risk,
do поt give risе to contractual cash flows that inctude so[e[y payment of ргiпсiраt and interest оп the
principat outstanding. Ап originated оr acquired financial asset mау Ье the underlying [оап contract,
Whether or not it is а lоап iп its tegal form.

The business models used to manage financiat assets was assessed at the date of first adoption of lFRS 9
to classify а financiat asset. The business modet has Ьееп applied retrospectivety to atl financiat assets
recognized jп the Вапk'S Ьа[апсе sheet at the date of first adoption of lFRS 9. The business modet used
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Ьу the Bank is defined at а levet that reflects how the grouped financiaI assets аrе managed to achieve
а раrtiсчlаr business objective. Since the Bank's business model is not subject to the management's
intentions fоr an individuaI instrument, the assessment is not made at the tevet of individUaI instruments,
but at а higher level of aggregation.

То mапаgе its financiaI instruments, the Bank uses several business mode[s that describe the mechaniSm
for managing financial assets iп order to generate cash flows. These business modets determine whether
cash flows of the Вапk Witt result from the receipt of contractual cash flows, the sale of financial assets,
or both,

When assessing а business modet, the Вапk takes into account al[ availabte information. However, the
assessment is not based оп scenarios that the Bank сап reasonably expect to оссur, such as а 'worst
case' оr 'Stress' scenario. The Bank takes into ассочпt alt retevant data, such as:

. а mechanism for evatuating the effectiveness of the business model and the financial assets held
Within that business model апd reporting to key mапаgеmепt реrsоппе[;

. risks affecting the effectiveness of the business model (апd the financial assets hetd within that
business model) and how those risks аrе mапаgеd; апd

. the mechanism for paying rеmчпеrаtiоп to management (for example, the grounds for paying
remuneration аrе analysed: а fair value of rеlечапt assets or contractual cash flows received).

At initiat recognition of а financial asset, the Bank determines whether new[y recognized financial assets
are part of ап existing business model or indicate the еmеrgепсе of а new business model. The Вапk
reviews its business models in each reporting period to identify changes from the рrечiоus perjod. lп the
current reporting period, the Bank did поt reveat апу changes iп its business models.

Upon derecognition of а debt instrument measured at fair vatue through other comprehensive income,
the cumulative profit/toss previously recognized in other comPrehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit оr [oss. Debt instruments that, after initial recognition, аrе measured at amortized cost
оr at fair vatue throUgh other comprehensive income аrе subject to impairment.

Dеrесоgпitiоп

The Bank derecognises а financial asset Whеп it loses its contractual rights to cash flows from that
financia[ asset, or when it transfers а financiat asset in а transaction in which substantiatty att the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset аrе transferred to the other party, оr in which the Bank
does поt transfer оr retain substantiatly at[ the risks апd rewards incidental to ownership of that financial
asset and does not retain controt of the financial asset. Апу interest in transferred financjal assets that
quatify for derecognition created оr retained Ьу the Bank is recognized aS а separate asset оr liabi[ity iп
the statement of financiat position. The Bank derecognizes а financial tiabitity when the contractual
tiabitities оп it аrе discharged, cancetled оr terminated.

The Bank enters into transactions Whereby it transfers the assets recognized iп the statement of financiaI
position, but retains alt or part of the risks and rewards arising from ownership of the transferred assets.
While retaining а[[ оr substantiatty att the risks and rewards, the Вапk does not derecognize the
transferred assets.

ln transactions whеrе the Bank does not retain, but does not transfer substantially atl the risks апd
rewards of ownership of а financiaI asset, that asset is derecognized if the Bank has tost controI of the
asset.

lf the Вапk retains control of the asset When it is transferred, it continues to recognize the asset to the
extent that it retains ап interest in the asset, Which iS determined as ап extent to Which the Bank is
exposed to сhапgеs in its value.

The Bank writes off he assets that аrе recognized as uncollectible.

Assets and tiabilities offset

Financial assets and tiabitities are offset and presented in the statement of financial position оп а net
basis оп[у when the Вапk счrrепttу has ап епfоrсеаЬtе right to offset the recognized amoUnts and intends
to either settle them оп а net basis or dispose of the asset and settte the tiabitity at the Same time. The
Bank currently has а legally епfоrсеаЬlе right to set off unless this right js conditionat оп а future event
and is legatty епfоrсеаЬtе both in the поrmаt course of business апd in case of а default on liabilities,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or апу of its counterparties. 
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lmроirmепt

lmpairment for financial assets was catcUtated taking into account the fo[[owing factors:

. то calculate the amount of expected credit tosses (EcLs), the Bank evatuates the tоапs оп а case-
by-case basis and оп а group basis with grouping the assets based оп the gепеrаt characteristics of
credit risk.

. EcLs are estimates of the present value of credit losses given their probabitity. Тhе estimate of
these losses is the рrеsепt vatue of а difference between the cash flows due to the Bank under а
contract and the cash flows that the Вапk expects to rесеiче based on а probabitity analysis of а
пчmЬеr of economic Scenarios, discounted Using the effective interest rate for the rеlечапt asset.

. The calculation is based оп rеаsопаьtе and substantiated information that сап Ье obtained without
чпdче cost or effort. The catcutation of the current vatue of the expected future cash flow of а
colIatera[ized financiaI asset reflects the cash flow that coutd result from enforcement minus the
costs of obtaining апd enforcing the collaterat whether оr not enforcement iS рrоЬаЬtе. The
prov,isions аrе based оп the Bank's оwп loss analysis ехреriепсе and management's assumptions
about the tevet of losses that аrе likety to Ье recognized for assets in each credit risk category
based оп thе capabitity to service а debt апd the Ьоrrоwеr's credit history.

. The impairment for treasury operationS (investments iп debt securities, rечеrsе REPo transactionS,
interbank toans and deposits, operations оп соrrеsропdепt accounts, receivables оп treasury
operations) i5 catcutated taking into account the rating of а counterparty, the probabitity of
default, the term of а transaction and the level of loss at default.

. The expected credit tosses оп treasury operations аrе measured on а case-by-case basis (except for
сеrtаiп claims in the form of receivabtes).

Fiпапсiа[ assets аrе segmented into baskets iп ассоrdапсе with the fottowing approach:

. Stage ,1: the credit risk hа5 not increased significantly since the recognition of ап asset; impairment
is recognized iп the amount of expected losses over the пехt 12 months;

. stage 2: the credit risk has increased significantty since the recognition of ап asset; impairment is
recognized iп the amount of expected losses очеr the entire life of а financiat asseu

. Stage 3: Тhе financial asset is iп default оr has indications of impairment.

Provisions for expected credit losses

The expected credit losses must Ье estimated using ап allowance the value of which is equal to:

. the amount of credit tosses expected over the next'l2 months i.e. that portion of credit losses over
the entire tife of а fiпапсiаt instrument that rерrеsепts expected credit tosses due to defautts оп
tiabitities Under the instrument that may arise within 12 months after the reporting date (Stage
1);

. the amount of credit tosses expected over the entire tife of а financiat instrument, which arise as
а result of at[ possibte cases of default оп tiabitities under ап instrument during term thereof
(Stage 2 апd Stage З),

The creation of ап а[[оwапсе in the amount of totat EcLs for the entire [ife of а financial instrument iý
required in the event of а significant increase in the credit risk of the instrument since its initiat
recognition. lп all other cases, the provisions for EcLs аrе formed iп the amount equal to the EcLs Within
'12 months.

. Fоr uпdrаwп credit, EcLs аrе а5 difference between the present value of the difference between
the сопtrасtча[ cash ftows due to the Bank if the holder of а commitment draws the credit апd
the cash flows the Bank expects to receive if the credit is drawn.

. Fоr financial guarantee сопtrасts, EcLs аrе а difference between the expected payments to
indemnify а holder of guaranteed debt instrument leSS апу amounts that the Bank expects to
rесеiче from holder, Ьоrrоwеr оr апу оthеr party.

EcLs are estimated for individual loans оr portfotios of loans with similar risk characteristics. The
calcutation of ап atlowance for ECLs (whether оп а case-by-case basis оr оп а grоuр basis) is based оп
the present vatue of the expected cash ftows for the asset using the originaI effective interest rate (ElR).
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When determining EcLs, it is extremety important to use the definition of а default. The definition of а
defautt is used to estimate the amount of EcLs and to determine if ап allowance is calcutated for the
next 12 months оr for the entire term of the [оап, since the сопсерt of 'а default' is а part of the concept
of'Probabitity of а default', which affects both the estimate of EcLs and identification of а significant
iпсrеаsе in credit risk.

Definition of а default

Financia[ assets in default Ьеаr the maximum credit risk, and there is по possibitity of rесочеry Within
the original time [imits set, restructuring оr, in the absence of prospects fоr such restructuring,
recognition of loss in full or in part is required. Deterioration of the financial condition of the
issuer/borrower below а critical [eve[ inctudes significant losses, а decrease in market share, the cost of
capitat fatting below zero.

Due to the specificity of each of the financial assets in the Bank's portfolio, the decision оп recognition
of default is made after being considered Ьу the credit committee of the Bank оп а case-by-case basis.
As а ru[e, this decision is made as а result of events that have happened оr аrе highty tikety to Ье
expected.

The qualitative factors for the impairment of financial assets mау include the suspension of accrual of
remuneration due to the deterioration of the financia[ condition of а counterparty, the write-off of а
part апd/оr fult аmочпt outstanding, which is caused Ьу а significant increase in credit risk since the
provision of the financial asset, the sale of financial assets With а significant discount (15% or mоrе),
tоап restructuring, fiting а tawsuit for recognizing а counterparty as а Ьапkrчрt, as wetl as the
diSappearance of ап active market for а security, а decrease in the ча[uе of coIlateraI or other observab[e
data.

lf the terms of а bank [оап to а customer are renegotiated so that it becomes substantiatty а пеW [оап,
the Bank reco8nizes the derecognition of such financial asset, white recognizing the difference from the
derecognition of the asset to the allowance for expected credit tosses in profit оr loss. At initial
recognition, [оапs to customers are classified at stage ,1 for the рчrро5е of measuring expected credit
losses, excluding [oans granted апd cIassified as PoCl (Purchased оr originated credit lmpaired Fiпапсiа[
Assets). lf the modification does поt result in а significant change in cash Flows, then the [оап wil[ not
terminate.

As of 3,1 December 2023, the interest сhаrgеd оп restructured [оапs amounted to 23,395 thousand tепgе
(3'1 DесеmЬеr 2022:20,7?1 thousand tenge).

As of З'l DесеmЬеr 2023, toans to customers included loans with restructured terms iп the amount of
81 'l ,987 thousand tenge (3'| DесеmЬеr 2022: 1,171,З77 thousand tenge).

С rеdi t- i mроi r ed riпопсiсl ossets

А financial asset is considered to Ье credit-impaired if опе or mоrе events оссчr that have а negative
impact оп the estimated future cash flows of such financial asset. lп retation to credit-impaired financiat
assets, the term 'Stage З assets' is Used. The indicators of credit impajrment include observabte data оп
the fot[owing events:

. significant financiat difficutties of thе Ьоrrоwеr or lender;

. violation of the terms of а сопtrасt, such as default or late payment;

. the tender making а concession to the Ьоrrоwеr for economic rеаsопs or contractuat terms due to
the financial difficutties of the Ьоrrоwеr that the [ender would поt otherwise have made;

. the disappearance of ап active market for the security as а resutt of financiat difficutties; оr

. purchasing а financiaI asset at [arge discount that reflects the credit losses incurred.

lп some cases, the identification of а singte event is not possible because the credit impairment of а
financial asset may Ье due to the combined effect of several events. At еасh reporting date, the Bank
assesses for credit impairment the debt instrUments, which аrе financiaI assets mеаSчrеd at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive iпсоmе. Iп assessing the credit impairment of
government and corporate debt instruments, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit
ratings and the borrower's abitity to raise funds.
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А [оап is considered to Ье credit-impaired if а сопсеssiоп iS granted to the Ьоrrоwеr due to deterioration
iп financial condition, provided there is по evidence that the concession resulted in а significant
reduction in the risk of not receiving contractuaI cash f[ows, and по other indicators of impairment exist.
Financial assets fоr which concession has been considered but not granted аrе considered to Ье credit-
impaired if there аrе observable indicatorS of credit impairment, inc[Uding those matching the definition
of а defau[t. The definition of а default includes indicators of the tack of probabitity of payment and the
expiration of the рауmепt period (in case of delay for 90 days оr mоrе). The decision to use cross default
is based оп ап individual assessment of the conditions of the customer's object, such as col(ateral and
materia[ity of the credit risk.

(с) Рrореrtу, plant and equipment

(i) Оид ossets

The items of property, plant and equipment are reported iп the financial statements at actual cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses, lf ап item of property, p[ant and equipment consists
of several components Иth different useful tives, Such соmропепts are reported as separate items of
property, p[ant and equipment.

(ii) Dерrесiаtjоп

Depreciation is charged on рrореrtу, plant and equipment on а declining balance method at the rates,
in the amount поt exceeding 20% for att types of property, plant and equipment, except for cases where
the tife of the item of рrореrtу, ptant and equipment is determined Ьу special conditions for the чsе of
that item of property, plant and equipment and is presented in profit оr loss. Depreciation is charged
from а date of acquisition of the item and, for items of property, plant апd equipment erected iп house,
frоm the mоmепt the construction of the object is comp[eted and it iS ready fоr operation. Land ptots
аrе поt depreciated.

lf the Вапk makes ап investment in leased рrореrtу, plant and equipment, such costs аrе amortized оп
а straight-tine basis очеr the shorter of the [ease term or the useful life of the improvements to the
leased рrорегtу.

(d) lпtапgiЫе assets

Acquired intangible assets аrе reported in the financiat statements at actua[ cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. Тhе costs of acquiring licenses fоr special software апd its
implementation аrе capitatized in the cost of the соrrеSропdiпg intangibIe asset.

Amortization is charged оп intangible assets Using the dectining Ьаlапсе method at the rates, in the
аmочпt not exceeding 20% for att types of intangibte assets, except for cases where the useful tife of ап
intangibte asset is determined Ьу speciat conditions for the use of this iпtапgiЫе asset and is presented
in profit or [oss.

(е) Lease

The Вапk, as а tessee, recognizes а right-of-use asset, which is the right to чsе the assets, and а tiabitity,
which is а tiabitity оп lease payments.

Fоr а[[ lease contracts (eХcept for those specified below), the Вапk:

. recognizes in the statement of financial position the right-of-use assets and the lease liabitities iп
'Property, plant and equipment' and 'other liabitities', respective[y;

. recognizes iп the statement of profit апd toss the amortization of the right-of-use assets as
deterioration and amortization expenses in 'operating expenses' апd interest оп lease tiabilities
iп 'lnterest expenses'; and

. separates iп the statement of cash flows the total cash used to rерау рriпсiраt (represented in
financing activities) and interest (represented in operating activities).

The right-to-Use assets аrе tested for impairment in ассоrdапсе with lA5 36 Asset lmроirmепt,

Fоr short"term teases (up to '12 months) and low-value [eases of assets, the Bank recognizes lease
expenses оп а straight-[ine basis.

Lease incentive рауmепts (fоr exampte, а free (grасе) регiоd} аrе recognized as part of the measUrement
of the right-of-use assets апd the tease tiabitities at initiaI reco8nition.
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(f) Assets held fоr sale
Non-current assets and tiabilities directly related to поп-сurrепt assets аrе classified as held for sale
('disposat group') if it is tikety that the current ча[че of such assets Иll Ье recovered primarity through
the sate of these assets, but not through their реrmапепt use, as wett as if such assets (оr disposat group)
mау Ье disposed of in their счrrепt condition, The management must Ье committed to setting such assets
within опе year from а date these assets аrе classified as held fоr sate.

Assets held for sate are measured at the lower of their current апd fair value, tess se[[ing expenses. lп
case the fair value of ап asset hetd for sa[e, tess selting expenses, is less thап its current ча[uе, the entity
must recognize the impairment toss in the Statement of profit and Iosses as toss from assets hetd for sate.
Апу subsequent increase in the asset's fair value, less selling expenses, is recognized in the amount of
the accumulated impairment loss previously recognized for those assets.

(s) lmpairment of non-financial assets

Non-financiat assets, other than deferred tax assets, are tested for impairment at each reporting date.
The recoverable amount of non-financiat assets is the higher of fair vaIue [ess se[[ing expenses and value
in use. lп determining the value in use, estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their present value
using а pre-tax discount rate that reflects the счrrепt market estimate of the time value of mопеу апd
the risks incidentat to the asset. Fоr ап asset that does not generate cash flows generated Ьу other
assets, the rесочеrаЬlе amount is determined Ьу the grочр of cash generating assets to which the asset
Ье[опgs, The impairment loss is recognized Whеп thе carrying amount of а cash-generating asset or group
of cash-generating assets exceeds its recoverabte аmоuпt.

At[ impairment [osses of поп-fiпапсiаl assets аrе recognized in profit or loss and are опlу reversed if
there has Ьееп а change in the estimates used to determine the rесочеrаЬ(е amount. Апу impairment
loss of ап asset is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the
саrryiпg аmочпt (less amortization) that would have occurred had the impairment toss поt Ьееп reported
in the financiaI statements.

(h) РrоИsiопs

А provision is reported in the statement of financial position when the Bank has а tegat or reasonabte
tiabitity as а result of past event апd it is рrоЬаЬtе that ап outflow of funds will Ье required to settle
that tiabitity. lf the amount of such tiabitity is significant, then provisions are determined Ьу discounting
estimated future cash flows using а pre-tax discount rate that reftects the сurrепt market estimate of
the time value of mопеу апd, where applicabte, the risks incidentat to the tiabitity.

(i) contin8ent credit liabilities
lп the соUrsе of its сUrrепt business activities, the Bank assumes contin8ent credit tiabitities including
undrawn credit faci[ities, letters of cгedit and guarantees, апd provides other forms of credit iпsUrапсе.

Financiat guarantees are contracts that obtige the Вапk to make specified payments to compensate а
hоldеr of а financial guarantee for losses incurred because а specified debtor faits to make payment
whеп due in ассоrdапсе with the terms of а debt iпstrчmепt.

А tiabitity uпdеr а fiпапсiаl guarantee is initiatty recognized at fair value less the associated transaction
costs and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount initia[[y recognized tess accumutated
depreciation or the provision for possible losses under the guarantee. Рrочisiопs for possible losses under
financial guarantees and other credit tiabilities are recognized when there is а high probabitity of
оссчrrепсе of losses and such losses сап Ье mеаSчrеd with а rеаsопаЬtе degree of retiability.

Liabitities чпdеr financial guarantees апd provisions for other credit tiabitities аrе included in other
tiabitities.

Lending [iabi[ities аrе not recognized iп the financiaI statements except for the fo[[owing:

. commitments to grапt loans, Which the Вапk defines as financial tiabitities at fair value the
changes in which are reported in profit оr loss fоr the period;

. if the Bank has а past ехреriепсе of selling the assets acquired iп connection with [оап
commitments, shоrtlу after they аrisе, simi[ar to the [оап commitments Ьеlопgiпg to the same
c[ass of instrumentS that аrе considered as derivative financiat instruments;
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. loan commitments that аrе settted according to а contract оп а net basis in cash оr Ьу transfer or
issue of another fiпапсiаl instrument; оr

. [оап commitments at а rate below the market опе.

U) Share capital
(i) Оrdiпоry shores

Тhе ordinary shares are classified as equity. costs directty attributaЫe to the issue of оrdiпаry shares
and share options аrе recognized as а decrease in equity less апу tax effects.

(ii) Diidепd

The abitity of the Bank to declare and рау dividends is subject to the regu[ation of the effective
legistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

Dividend оп оrdiпаry shares are recognized iп the financial statements as а use of retained еаrпiпgs
when dectared.

(k) Taxation

The iпсоmе tax inctudes current tax and deferred tax. lпсоmе taХ iS recognized iп profit or loss iп ful[,
With the exception of amounts relating to transactions recognized in other comprehensive income оr
transactions with owners recognized directly in equity, which, respectively, are rероrtеd iп other
comprehensive income оr directly in equity.

current income tax ехрепsеs are catculated based оп the estimated taxable profit for the уеаr taking
into account the income tax rates in fоrсе at the reporting date, as wet[ as the tiabitities аrisiпg from
the adjustment of income tax amounts for previous rероrtiпg years.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiIities аrе recognized for temporary differences аrisiпg between
the саrryiпg amount of assets and tiabilities determined for the purposes of their presentation in the
financial statements and their tax base. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabitities are not
recognized for the fottowing temporary differences: differences retating to assets апd liabilities the
initiat recognition of which does поt affect either accounting or taxable profit. The deferred tax assets
and deferred tax tiabitities are determined based оп the tax rates that witt appty iп the future at the
time of the reversaI of the tеmроrаrу differences, based on the laws in effect or substantialty enacted
at the reporting date.

Тhе calculation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabilities reflects the tax implications that
depend ол the mаппеr iп which the Вапk is going to recover or settle the carrying amount of assets апd
tiabitities at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is рrоЬаЬtе that Sufficient taxabte profit witt Ье
generated in the future to сочеr the temporary differences, non-recorded tax expenses and unused tax
benefits,

The deferred tax assets аrе reduced to the extent that it is поt рrоЬаЬ[е that taxabte profit йtt Ье
avai[abte against which the deductibte temporary differences сап Ье used.

(l) Recognition of income апd expenses iп the financial statements

lnterest income and expenses оп atl financiat instruments, except for financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, аrе recognized iп Net interest income as lnterest income calculated using
the effective interest method and lnterest expenses in the Statement of profit and losses Using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is а rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows of а financial
instrument to the net carrying amount очег the expected [ife of а financiat asset or tiabitity or (if
appticabte) очеr а shorter period. Future cash flows аrе estimated taking into account а[[ contractual
conditions of the instrument.

lf а financial asset or а group of financial assets has Ьееп written off (or partially WПtten off) as а resutt
of ап impairment, interest income is determined Using the interest rate used to discount future cash
ftows to calculate impairment losses to the net amortized cost of that financiat asset. lf defautt оп а
financial asset is liquidated апd it is по tопgеr credit-impaired, the Bank reverts to calculating interest
iпсоmе оп а gross basis.
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Fее iпсоmе is reported as а transfer of services to customers iп ап amount that reftects а consideration
expected to Ье received in exchange for such services. The Bank defines а performance obtigation id est
the services agreed upon with а customer and а consideration, and recognizes income in accordance
with the transfer of serviceS, реrfоrmапсе obtigation agreed чроп with the cUstomer.

Fоr each реrfоrmапсе obligation identified, the Вапk determines at the time of contract conclusion
whether it fulfils реrfоrmапсе obligation within specified time limit or at а specified point in time, апd
whether the consideration is fixed оr чагiаЫе, including the timitation of rеimЬursеmепt, for ехаmр[е,
Ьу external factors not retated to the ,influence of the Bank. The reimbursement is subsequently
atlocated to the identified performance obtigation.

The other fees, as we[[ as other income and ехрепsеs, аrе recognized iп profit оr toss оп the date the
retated service is provided.

Payments under operating tease contracts are recognized in profit or loss for the period оп а strajght-
line basis оVеr the entire tease term. Тhе amount of benefits rесеiчеd reduces the totat lease expenses
for entire lease term.

(m) Financial guarantee contracts

Fiпапсiа[ guarantees or letters of credit provided Ьу the Bank аrе collaterat for credit transactions that
provide for рауmепt as compensation for а loss that is incurred if а debtor fai[s to make payment iп due
time in accordance with the original or modified terms of а debt instrument, Such financial guarantees
or letters of credit are initia[ly reported at fair value. Subsequently, they аrе measured оп the basis of
(а) the аmоUпt recognized as а provision and (Ь) the amount initialty recognized, less, where applicable,
accumulated amortization of deferred income in the form of а premium received uпdеr а financial
guarantee оr tetters of credit, whichever is grеаtеr.

(п) Adoption of пеw апd amended lnternational Fiпапсiаl Rерогtiпg Standards (lFRSs)

The Вапk has adopted for the first time certain standards апd amendments that аrе effective for аппuа[
reporting periods beginning оп or after 1 January 20zЗ. The Bank has not еаr[у adopted Standards,
interpretations or amendments that have Ьееп issued but аrе not yet effective. The nature and impact
of each amendment аrе described below:

The fottoйng amendments аrе effective for the period beginning оп оr after 1 January 2023:

о |FRS 17 lпsurапсе Controcts
. Amendment to lAS 8 - Dеfiпitiоп о| дссочпtiпg Estimates (illustrations of changes iп accounting

policies and accounting estimates)
. Amendment to lAS 'l - Application of Materiality Judgements to Ассоuпtiпg Poticy Disctosures
. Amendment to lAs 1 Presentotion of Fiпапсiаl statements - ctassification of current апd Nоп-

current Liabi[ities
. Amendment to lAs 12 lпсоmе тах - Deferred тах Retated to Assets and Liabitities Аrisiпg from а

Single Transaction

lFRs 17 lпsчrопсе сопtrосts

lFRs 17 /nsuronce Сопtrосts (hereinafter - lFRS 17), which replaced lFRs 4 lnsuronce Сопtrосts, became
effective as from 1 January 202З.

The conceptual difference of lFRs 17 is that this standard, untike |FRS 4, does not provide а detaited
method for assessing catcutation Parameters, but iS based оп the judgments and the actuary's own modets
whеп assessing insurance tiabitities.

This standard iS поt applied to the Bank's activities.

Дmепdmепts tо rFRsý mопddtоrу iп the riпопсiоl stotenents fоr the оппuоl period Ьеgiппiпg оп 1

Jonuory 2023:

Дmепdmепt to lДs 8 Definition of дссоuпtiпg Estimotes

The amendment amends lAS 8 Дссоuпtiпg Policies, Сhопgеs iп Accounting Estimotes опd Еrrоrs, which is
designed to ctarify the distinction between accounting po[icies апd accounting estimates and is effective
for the аппuа[ periods beginning оп 1 January 2023.

Additionatty, the following indicators are given as examptes of accounting estimates:
z1



a[lowance fоr exPected credit losses (lFRS 9 Finoncial /nstruments);
net realizable value of а unit of inventory (IFRS 2 /nyentol,ies);
fair ча[че of ап asset or tiabitity (lFRS 13 Fоir vоIче Меоsчrеmепt) (hereinafter - lFRS 1З);

expenses for depreciation of ап item of property, ptant and equipment (lA5 ,16 Property,
Рlапt апd Equipment) (hereinafter - lFRs 16); апd
provision for guarantee commitments (lAS 37 РrоИsiопs, Сопtiпgепt Liabitities опd
contingenf Д55еt5).

Тhе standard establishes that а change in ап accounting estimate сап оп[у affect the profit оr loss of the
current регiоd оr the profit or [oss of both the счrrепt period and future periods.

The effect of the change relating to the счrrепt реriоd is recognized as income or ехрепsе in the счrrепt
period. The effect, if апу, оп future periods is recognized as income оr expense iп those future periods.
changes in accounting estimates are поt changes iп accounting poticies.

Дmепdmепts to lДs 1 Рrеsепtаtiоп of Fiпапсiаl stdtements

lFRS Practice Statement No. 2 Л,lоkiпg iИoteriality Judgements апd lAS 8 Дссочпtiпg Policies, Changes in
ДссоUпtiпg Estimotes опd Еrrоrs pubtished jn FеЬrчаry 202'l апd effective for the reporting periods
beginning оп or after '1 January 2023.

The amendments аrе intended to improve disctosures about accounting poticie5 and to assist Users of
financiaI statements in distingUishing between changes iп accounting estimates and changes in accoUnting
poticies.

Дmепdmепts to lДS 1 Clossificotion о| Liobilities os Сurrепt оr Nоп-Сurrепt

Тhе amendment issued in January 2020 amended paragraphs 69,7З,74 and 76, and added paragraphs
72Л, 75Л,76А and 76В of lAs 1 . These amendments аrе to Ье applied to the аппuа[ periods Ьеgiппiпg оп
оr after 1 January 202З, retrospectively in accordance With lAS 8. Еаrtу apptication was permitted.

Дmепdmепt to lДS 12 lпсоmе Тах - Dеfеrrеd Тох Reloted to Aýýetý опd Liobilities Дгisiпg frоm о
Single Tronsoction

Amendments to lAS ,l2 /псоmе Iох pubtished iп Мау 2021 апd effective for the reporting periods beginning
оп or after 1 January 2023.

The Board introduced these Amendments to reduce discrepancies in how entities account for deferred
tax оп transactions and events, such aS leases апd decommissioning tiabitities, that resu[t in initial
recognition of both assets апd tiabitities.

The amendments паrrоW the scope of the exceptions to initiat recognition чпdеr lAS ,l2 so that the
exception по longer applies to transactions that give rise to equa[ taxable апd deductibte temporary
differences.

The amendments atso сlагifу that the deduction for tax purposeý of payments to settle tiabilities iS а
matter of judgment (iп accordance with арр[iсаЫе taХ laws) as to whether such deductions are consistent
With tax purposes for tiabitities recognized in the financial statements (and interest expense) or related
asset (апd interest ехрепsе).

This jUdgment is important in determining Whether апу temporary differences exist at the initial
rесо8пitiоп of ап asset and tiabitity.

These amendments аrе intended to imрrоче disctosure of ассочпtiпg poticieS апd assist users of financiat
statements in distinguishing between changes iп accounting estimates and changes in accounting poIicies.

The Вапk iS счrrепt[у assessing the impact these amendment5 mау have оп the disctosure of information
aboUt thе Bank's accounting poticies.

4. NET lNTEREST lNcoME

202з z022

?7 ,557 ,з20
6,184,61з

28,408,008

5,507,196
2,848,561
2,4з4,609

z2

SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC' NoTEs ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENT5 fоr the year ended З1 December 2023
, (thоusопd Kozakhston tеп9е)

lnterest iпсоmе
cash and cash equivalents
Loans granted to customers
Fjпапсjаl assets at amortized cost



Fiпапсiа[ assets at fair value through other comPrehensive income
Loans isýued to banks
Accounts апd deposits with banks
Total lnterest iпсоmе
lnterest expenýes
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Fее оп toans

Liabitity оп tease
Liabitities on REPo contracts
Accounts and deposits of banks
Total interest ехрепsе
Total net interest iпсоmе

5. coмMlssloN lNcoME

Transfer transactions
cash transactions
Guаrапtееs and letters of credit
other
Total fee income

6. coмMlssloN ExPENsEs

obtained guarantees
Transfer transactions
0ther
Total fee exPenses

7. NET PROF|T FROм FORE|GN cURRENсY TRANSAcTloNS

Deating transactions, net
Fоrеigп ехсhапgе differences, net
Total net profit from foreign currency transactions

8. PERSoNNEL EXPENSES

Employee benefits
Taxes and withhotdings from sa[ary
Total Personnel ехрепsёs

9 PROV|SlONS FOR EXPECTED CREDlT LOSSES

1 5,032
1,з89

104,487

52,4з 5

62,2т0,849 10,842,801

(4,826,650)
(1,240,00з)

(з5, з49)
(2,760)

(1 19)

(з8,0з9,864) (6,104,881)
?4 230,985 737 9204

2022
1з,1 ,323
70,216
z,848

1з,547

124, з8з
2з,276
1,767

11,711
167 9з4 161 1з7

202 з zoz2
109,4й
44,510
41 462 з0 049

195 376 234 435

?02з zOz2
?,657,992 475,8з7

41,921 1з0,704
2 699 91з 606 541

zO2з zO22

164,97з
39,41з

саsh and
cash

equivalents

AccoUnts
and

dePosits
with

banks

Loans
granted to
счstоmеrs

Fi папсiа l
assets at

amortized
co5t

Financial assets
at fair value

through other
comprehensiYe

income
other
a5sets Total

as of 1 January
zO22 608 60 91 912 з 187 4зб z 551 99 754

Fоrmiпg
proYjSions
RесоYеriпg
proYisionS
write-off

зз 207,983

(90,206)
(22,928 )

8,841

(8,866 )

56

(з56)

5,671 247,749

(1 25,908 )
(24,6J0)

zз

(4) (4, з4з)
(1 ,682 )

, SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS fоr the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2023
( t housond Kazo khs tоп te п9е )

(36,240,189)
(1 ,701 ,z49|

(30,155)
(68,271)

1,056,606 911 ,797106,785 90,117
1,163,391 1 ,00,| ,91 4

202з

24,665

(22,1зз )



Для

!:*у/
SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANсIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 202З
( tho uso пd Kozakhstoп te пgе )

77 7 |947 ) 9 (859)

4,z17 91 185,814 з,,l62 136 2,2об 195,626

Fоrеigп
ехсhапgе
difference
а5 of з1
December 2022
Fоrmiпg
proyisions
Rесочеriпg
рrоИ5iопs
write-off
Fоrеigп
ехсhапgе
difference
as of з,|
DесеmЬеr 202з

68,316

(6з,21 1)

116

(1 17)

265,097

|159,712|

57,855

(55,166)

4,47з з95,857

(1з6) (5,472|
_ (482)

(283,814)
(482)

(111) (з5) (4) з4 (1 16)

90 291 164 847 759 з07 о71

During 2023, provisions for contingent credit tiabilities wеrе formed iп the amount of 25,355 thousand
tenge and provisions wеrе rесочеrеd in the amount of 2З,071 thousand tenge (2022: formation of
provisions in the amount of 2з,4Зз thousand tenge and recovery of provisions iп the amount of 28,1 50
thousand tenge).

z4

9,711
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JýC
NOTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS for the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2023
( thouso пd Kazo khston tenge)

,l0. oTHER GENERAL AND ADM|NlsTRATlvE EXPENSES

Depreciation and amortization
Taxes, fees апd other compulsory payments
communication seмces апd information seмces
software support
operating ехрепsеs
Processing serv,ices
Membership fees
professionaI services
Representation expenses
Travet[ing expenses
lпsurапсе expen5es
Transportation expenses
Expenses fоr operating lease
5ecurity
Repair and maintenance
office ýuppties
Advertisement and marketing
Writing off property, p[ant and equipment
оthеr
Total other 8епеrаl апd admInistrative ехрепsеs

lпсоmе tax rесочеry/(ехрепsе)

Reporting period
AdjUstment to рriоr period
changes iп deferred taxes resutting from оссчrrепсе and
rесочеry of temporary differences

Total lncome tax rесочеry/(ехрепsе)

profit before iпсоmе tax
lпсоmе tax catcutated iп accordance with preYailing income tax rate
Non-taxable income from transactions with securities
other non-deductib[e expenses/ (income)

2о?з zo22
10?,914

67 ,1?0
61 ,779
46,6з9
з0,051
27 ,7 67
22,5з2
21,з85
18,92з
16,628
12,458
12,198
11,419
8,527
8,507
5,815
1,99з
1,4з0

87 ,91?,

91 ,556
4з,z76
5 з, з68
70,89з
26,714
2 5,98з
25,0з 1

27 

"l7 

6
14, ]60
5,087

1з,626
7 ,499
з,289
7,51 з
8,82 5

4,з71
2,з18

14,657
78,0з7

565 997 52з 579

11. lNcoME тАх REcovERY/(ExPENSE)

The Bank makes tax calculations for the current period based оп data of tax accounting records kept in
ассоrdапсе with the requirements of the tax laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan. |псоmе tax expenses
for the years ended З1 December 2023 and 2022 are shown betow.

z0zз ?022

1z,644

з 296

(262,500)
6,51 з

479

15,940 (254,508)

The income tax rаtе jп the Republic of Kazakhstan was Set at 20% during 202З апd 2022. lпсоmе оп
gочеrпmепt securities and сеrtаiп other securities iS поt Subject to income tax.

Due to the fact that certain expenses аrе поt accounted for tax purposes, as welt as there is non-taxable
income, the Вапk has certain реrmапепt tax differences.

calcutation of the effective iпсоmе tax rate for the years ended 3,1 DесеmЬеr 2023 and 2022:

202з z022
25,z01,765

5,040, з5з
(5,684,608)

3,625,85з
725,171

(497 ,409\
628 Jlf 26 746

(15,940) 254,508
Effective iпсоmе tax rate -0.1% 7 .0%

Dеfеrrеd tax assets and liabilities

Тhе temporary differences arising between the vatue of assets and tiabilities reported in the financiat
statements and the amounts used to calculate the tax base give rise to deferred tax assets as of З,l
DесеmЬеr 2023 and tiabitities as of З'1 December 2022.

The change in the amount of temporary differences for the уеаrs ended 31 December 2023 апd 2022 сап
Ье presented as fotlows:

27
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2о2з

2022

Property, plant and equipment,
intangibte assets and right-of-Use
assets

other tiabitities

1?. сASH AND сASH EQU|VALENTS

ваlапсе as of 1

January 2023
Reported iп
ргоfit оr loss

Rерогtеd iп
equity

(12,892)

57 ,864

(15,267)

18,56з

(28,1 59)

76,4?7

44,97z 3,z96 48,268

Balance as of 1

January 2022
RePorted in
profit оr loss

Reported in
equity

Balance аý of
з1 DесеmЬеr

zozz

( 32,459 )

75,957

19,567

(18,088)

(12,892)

57,864

43 49з 479

з1.12.?023 31.1z,2022
cash оп hапd

Nostro accounts with RK NB

Nostro accounts with other Ьапks
- hачiпg credit rоtiпg Д- to Д+

- hачiпg credit roting ВВ- to 8В+

- hачiпg credit rоtiпg В-

- поt rated

Total Nostro accounts with other Ьапks

,1 

,183,458
943,194

8,007,882

132,43з

450,500

6,947,850

4,057,612

9з,900

46 829 l24,509
,187 144

316,664,383 68,78з,652

8

9 010 781

(9,211) (4,217|

зз5 979 749 80 453 806

Тhе credit ratingý аrе presented iп ассоrdапсе Иth the standards of the rating agency Standard & Poor's
оr simiIar standards of other internationat rating agencies.

Cash and cash equivalents are not past due.

Requirements fоr minimum reserves

As of з1 December 2023 and 31 DесеmЬеr 2022, in ассоrdапсе with the resotution of the RK NB, the
minimum rеsеrче requirements аrе calculated as the ачеrаgе of the sums of certain shares of various
groups of tiabilities of the Вапk for twenty-eight calendar days. The banks are required to comply with
these requirements Ьу maintaining average rеsеrче assets (in the form of cash оп hand iп паtiопаl
currency апd balances оп correspondent accounts of the Вапk with the National Вапk in national
счrrепсу) in ап amount equal to оr exceeding the ачеrаgе miпimum requirements. As of 31 DесеmЬеr
2023, the minimum rеsеrче amounts to 1,587,259 thousand tenge (31 December 2022: 2,586,018
thousand tenge).

concentration of cash and cash equivalents

As of З'l December 202З, the Вапk has thrее banks (31 DесеmЬеr 2022: 2 banks) each holding mоrе than
'10% of the Bank's equity. The total ba[ances of the indicated banks as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 amount to
З30,078,507 thousand tenge (31 December 20zz2 79,789,114 thousand tenge).

SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JsC' NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS for the уеаr ended З1 December 2023

,. (thousond Kazakl,ston tenge)

Рrореrtу, plant and eqUipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use
assets

0thеr tiabitities

ваlапсе as of
з1 DесеmЬеr

20zз

44,97z

cash equivatents

Теrm deposits with RK NB

Теrm deposits with other banks

Provision for expected credit losses

Total cash and саsh equiYalents

4,276,021
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13. AccoUNTs AND DEPoS|TS wlTH BANKS

з1-12.2о7з 31.12.2022
185,000 182,90з

(9q] (91)

1 84,9,10 182,812

дs of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 and 31 December 2022, accordingty, the Bank had по deposits that woutd exceed
10% of the Bank's equity.

14. FlNANс|AL ASsETs Ат FAIR VALUE THRoUGH oTHER coMPREHENslvE lNcoME

Дs of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023, the Bank does not have financial assets reported at fair value through other
comprehensive income. As of З,1 DесеmЬеr 2022, the Вапk owned debt financial instruments - Treasury
bonds of the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan in the amount of 970,269 thousand tenge.
These assets wеrе not past due.

15. LoANS GRANTED то cUSToMERs

cash restricted iп use

Provision for expected credit tosses

Total accounts and deposits with Ьапks

LoanS granted to corporate customeTs
- Loons gronted to lorge-scole businesses
- Loons gronted to 

'mall 
опd mediurn-sized businesses

Total lоапs granted to corporate customers

Provision fоr impairment
Total loans granted to соrроrаtе customers, Subject to ргочisiоп
for imPairment

Loans granted to retail customers
- сопsumеr credits

Total loans granted to retail customers

Provision for impairment
Total loans granted to retail счstоmеrs, subject to provision for
impairment

Total loans 8ranted to customers less provision

6,978,987

з1 619 646 13 912 14з

38,598,633 1з,912,14з
(285,658) (18з,660)

з 8,3 1 2,9 75 1з,7z8,48з

8 698 559

(5,506) (2,154|

9 802 142 8 696 405

ш115,117 22,4z4,888

(а) Quality of lоап5 granted to customers

The tabte below provides information оп quality of toans granted to customers as of З1 December 2023:

Loss frоm
impairment to

total lоап5
Ьеfоrе

provision fоr
imPairment

LoanS granted to corporate cUstomers
- uпduе
- post due less thап 90 days

" past due mоrе than 90 doys
Total loans granted to corPorate
счstоmеrs
Loans granted to retail customers

Loans
Ьеfоrе

provision
fоr

impairment

provision
for

imPairment

Loans less
proYision

fог
imPairment

37,843,886

146,52з

608,224

(l1,801)
(29,490)

(244,367)

з7,8з2,085

1 17,033

з63,857

38,598,633 (285,65qL 38, з 12,975

Z-\./,;]"_ .* \

31.12.202з з1.1z.zozz

9,807,648 8,698,559

9,80 7,648
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- чпdче
- past dUе less thоп 90 days
- past dче mоrе thап 90 doys

Total lоапs 8ranted to retail customers

9,765,968

10,970

30,710

(5,180)

(4)

(з22)

9,760,788

10,966

J0,388

9,807,648 (5,506) 9,802,142

The tabte betow provides information оп quality of [оапs granted to customers as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2022:

Loss frоm
imраirmепt to

total loans
before

рrочisiоп for
impairment

Loans granted to corporate customers
- чпdче
- post due less thоп 90 days

- post due mоrе thon 90 doys
Total loans 8ranted to corporate
customers
Loans 8ranted to retait customers
- uпdче
- past due less thon 90 doys
- post due mоrе thоп 90 days

Total loans 8ranted to retail счstоmеrs

Loaný
Ьеfоrе

provision
fоr

impairment

provision
for

impairment

Loans less
provision

fоr
impairment

1з,647,947

107 ,098

157,098

(26,562)

(157,098)

1з,621 ,з85
107,098

13,91?,143 (18з,660) 13,728,483

8,64з,076
47,663

(1,912)

(242)

8,641,164

47,421

7,8208207

8,698,559 (z,154) 8,69 6,40 5

lп 202З, the provision for impairment includes formation of provisions for individuaIly measured toans in
the amount of 276,124 thousand tenge (З1 DесеmЬеr 2022: 172,849 thousand tenge), provision for
cottective impairment in the amount of 15,040 thousand tenge (3,1 DесеmЬеr z0zzi 12,965 thousand
tenge).

AS of 31 December zozЗ, the lоап portfolio has included the lоапs granted to соrроrаtе апd retait
customers the terms of which have Ьееп changed and which would otheмise Ье past due оr impaired
amount to 8З5,382 thousand tenge (з,| December 2022: 1,172,3Зз thousand tenge).

(Ь) Estimates of expected credit losses

Fоr issued tоапs, the calcutation of expected credit losses takes into ассочпt the possible estimated
effect of changes in mасrоесопоmiс parameters оп forecast cash flows, migration of co[lective loans and
со[[аtеrаl coverage,

When measuring the tevel of credit losses, the Bank uses sound foмard-looking information, which iý

based оп assumptions about the future mочеmепt of various economic factors and how these factors witI
affect each other.

The key inputs used to estimate expected credit losses include the following:

. probabitity of default (pD) is а key input in mеаsuriпg the level of credit tosses. The probabitity
of defautt is ап estimate очеr а giчеп time horizon the calculation of which includes historical data,
asSUmptions апd expectations of future conditions.

The probabitity of defaUtt on individuaI lоапs of corporate, sma[[ апd medium-sized businesses is assessed
using ап iпtеrпаl rating modet based оп the quantitative and qualitative characteristics of а Ьоrrоwеr.
The probabitity of defautt оп [оапs granted that аrе measured оп а coltective basis is calculated оп the
basis of historical data Ьу apptying the migration mаtriсеS.

. Loss given default (LGD) is an eýtimate of the loss that Wi[t arise in case of defautt. lt is based
оп а difference between the cash flows due under the contract and those that а tender would expect to
rесеiче taking into account the cash flows from the соllаtегаt,

The LGD for toans granted that are measured оп а collective basis is catcu[ated оп the basis of ап
assessment of the recoverabi[ity of tiabitities in the event of diSposat of а coIlateraI using discount periods
corresponding to the terms of disposaI of coltateral.
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(с)

(i)

. The аmочпt of а credit exposure at risk of defautt (EAD) is ап estimate of risk at а future date
of defautt taking into account eХpected changes in risk after the rероrtiп8 date, inctuding repayments
of рriпсiраl апd interest, as we[[ as expected drawdowns of approved credit funds. The Вапk's approach
to modelling this indicator takes into account the expected changes iп the outstanding amount during
the maturity period that are permitted Ьу the current contractual terms Such as amortization profiles,
рrерауmепts or overpayments, changes in the use of undrawn amounts оп credit tiabitities, and measures
taken to mitigate risks before the defautt. То assess credit exposures at risk of default, the Bank uses
modets that reftect the characteristics of the respective portfolios.

The ECL provisions for loans granted in the financiat statements have Ьееп determined based on the
prevaiting economic апd potitical conditions. The Bank саппоt predict What changes in conditions witt
occur iп the Repubtic of Kazakhstan and what effect these changes wilt have оп the adequacy of
provisions for EcLs of financial assets in future periods.

Analysis of collateral and other credit епhапсеmепts

Loans grопtеd to соrроrоtе сu'tоmеrs

The toans granted to соrроrаtе customers аrе subject to individual mеаsчrеmепt апd impairment testing.
The очеrа[[ creditworthiness of а соrроrаtе customer is usually the most important indicator of the
quality of the tоап granted to it. Ноwечеr, the cotlateral mеапs additionat guarantees, and the Вапk
usUal[y asks corporate ЬоrrоWеrs to provide the Same.

The tabtes below provide information оп co[[ateral and other credit enhancements for toans to corporate
customers Ьу type of co[[ateral:

carryin8 Fair value of Fаir Yаlче of
amount of collateral collateral
loans mеаsчrеd at mеаsчrеd at а Not measured
8rапtеd to the rероrtiп8 date of loan fair value of

з1 December 2023 customers date issuance collateral

Lоапs with по indiidual indicotors ol imроirmепt
Соrроrаtе guarantees (proYided Ьу
retated parties hайпg credit rating of
А- оr higher) 28,919,996
other guarantees (provided Ьу
companies having credit rating of А or
higher)

lmmочаЫе propeny З,76З,4З4

cash and deposits 20,00З

28,919,996

other cottaterat 4 570 648 4 570 648

274 081 з 78з 4з7 4 570 648 919 996

Loans with individuol indicotors о|
imроirmепt
corporate guarantee (provided Ьу
related party having credit ratjng of А-
to А+)

lmmочаЬtе рrорегtу
other со[[аtеrа[

585,910

452 984 452 984

1 0з8 894 452 984
Total loans granted to соrроrаtе
cu5tomers 996

з,76з,434

20,003

з8 з12 975 4 з69 з47 02з бз2 28 919
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Fair value of
collateral
measured at а
date of loan
issuance

Not mеа5чrеd
fair value of
collateralз1 December 2022

other coltateraI

Lооп5 with iпdiйduаl indicotors о|
iпpairment
Соrроrаtе guarantee (proйded Ьу
related party haYing credit rating of А-
to А+)

lmmoYab[e property

0ther cotlateraI

Саrrуiпg
amount of
loaný
granted to
customers

Fair yalue of
collateral
mеаýчrеd at
the reportin8
date

Lоалs Иth по indiiduol indicotors о| imраirmепt
Соrроrаtе 8Uarantees (provided Ьу
retated parties having credit rating of
А"оr higher) 4,828,683
other guarantees (provided Ьу
companieý having credit rating of А or
higher)

lmmочаЫе property 2,727,858

cash апd deposits 52,940

4,828,68з

z,7?7 ,858
52,940

250 7574

11 860 2зз 2 780 798 4 250 752 4 828 68з

2]1,698

18з,572

2з1,698

18з,572

452 980 452 980

868 250 18з 57z 1 45z 980 2з1 698
Total loans 8ranted to соrроrаtе
счýtоmеrз 1з 7z8 48з 2 964 з70 5 70з 7зz 5 060 з 8,|

The tabtes above excIude the cost of overcottateralization.

Because the abitity to rесоYеr undue and non-impaired [оап5 8ranted to соrроrаtе customers depends
in а grеаtеr degree оп the creditworthiness of а borrower than оп the ча[Uе of collateral, the Bank does
not always estimate the value of cotlaterat at each reporting date.

Fоr most loans, the fair value of the coltateral was measured at the reporting date. lnformation about
the value of co[laterat is presented depending оп the date оп which it was measured, if such а
mеаsчrеmепt is made,

Fоr [оапs with sечеrаl types of collaterat, information is disclosed Ьу the type of cot[ateral that is the
most significant fоr coIlateraI mеаsчrеmепt.

(ii) Loons grопtеd to retail customers

The tоапý granted to retail customers are mainty collaterized йth residential properties. According to
the Вапk's policy, the ratio between the [оап amount and the чаtче of the collateral оп the date of [оап
issuance should Ье timited to 60%.

The taЫes below provide information оп the coltateral of [оапs granted to retail customers:

Саrryiп8 аmочпt
of loans granted
to customers

Fair value of
collateral - fоr
collateral measured
at the reporting
date

Fair value of
collateral - for
collateral
measured at а
date of lоап
issuance

Not measured
fair value of
collateral

з1 DесеmЬеr 202з

UndUe

overdue
Total lоап5 grапtеd to
retail customerз

зl December 2022

Undue
overdue

9,760,788

41,з54

9,802,142

8,641 , 164

9,760,788

41,354

9,Boz,142

8,641 ,164
241 241

з2

ч:'". оЕ ,/

4,750,75z
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Total lоап5 grапtеd to
retail customers

The tabtes above exclude the cost of overcollateralizatioп,

(d) Апаlуsis of lоап portfolio Ьу branches of есопоmу and geographical аrеаs

The toans were granted mаiп[у to customers conducting activities in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan iп the
fottowiпg sectorS of the есопоmу:

31.12,2023 31.1z.z022
Loan5 granted to retail customers
Fiпапсеs
Trade
Warehousing and auxitiary transportation activities
provision of individual sеrчiсеs
construction
other professiona[, scientific and technical activities
Lease апd hiriпg
lmmoYab[e рrореrtу
Transport vehicles
Advertisjng activitieS
Speciatized construction works
Food stuff production
Printing апd rерrоdчсiпg recorded materiats

other

Total lоапs 8ranted to corporate customers

(е) concentration of [oans granted to счstоmеrs

8,696,405
5,050,816
1,888,756

7zб,187
902,з66
714,96з
680,186
317,505
780,245
450,975
21 6,810
66,409

z12,521
з,005

717 7з9

As of 3'1 DесеmЬеr 2023, the Bank has three borrowers whose [оап balances exceed ]0% of equity (З1

DесеmЬеr 2022: опе borrower). The total balances оп [оапs of the specified borrower as of З1 DесеmЬеr
202] amount to 28,919,996 thousand tenge (З1 DесеmЬеr 2022: З,420,403 thousand tenge).

16. FlNANclAL AsSETs Ат AMoRTlzED coST

з1.1z.2оzз з1.12.2022
Hetd Ьу the Bank

- Тrеаsury bills о| the Ministry of Fiпапсе о| the Repubtic о|
kozokhstoп

- Notes о/ thе National Вопk о| the Republic of Kazakhston

Provision for expected credit losses

Total financial assets at amortized cost

17,569,375

70,544,158

(5,847)

7,120,971

1з,789,861

(з,162)

88 107 686 20 907 670

Тhе fu[[ amount of investments held to maturity is represented Ьу trеаýчry billS of the MiniStry of Fiпапсе
of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan and notes of the Nationat Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan in the tenge
and having the credit rating of ВВВ-.

ln accordance with the Bank's investment poticy and business model, the management has the intent and
abitity to hotd these securities to maturity. officiatty pubtished price quotations for similar debt
securities with identical terms аrе availabte оп the local stock exchange.

Fоr treasury transactions, the Bank calculates expected credit tosses оп а financial asset based not only
оп the счrrепt assessments of the credit quality of а counterparty/issuer at the reporting date, but a[So
taking into ассочпt the possible deterioration of the financial condition due to the influence of
unfavourable macroeconomic factors in the operating environment of а counterparty (issuer) iп the
future. lп particular, the level of provisions for treasury transactions is affected Ьу the rating outlook
(positive, stabIe, negative) assigned Ьу the internationat rating agencies, which affects the probabitity
of defautt (PD).

The probabitity of defautt оп treasury transactions is determined according to the data of Defautt study
from the international rating agencies (S&P, Fitch, Moody's), which pub(ish tabular data with the values

зз

ч
8,696,405 8,696,405

9,802,142
29,25з,535

1 ,942,5з8
28з,862
795,004
61 5,015
407 ,582
257,891
8зз,79?
305,640
175,8z7
149,968
143,834

1,171

з,147,з16

48,115,117 22,4z4,888
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of defautt probabitities. Default probabilities аrе kePt up to date апd updated frоm time to time as
defautt statiSticS аrе updated.

The level of toss given defautt (LGD) for treasury trапsасtiопs is determined according to the data of the
Default Study frоm the internationat rating agencies (s&P, Fitch, Moody's) and depends оп the type of
debt оп а financial asset: sепiоr secured/Unsecured, ýubordinated, sovereign. LGD сап also Ье adjusted
if the asset is secured, aS we[[ as if there аrе indicators of impairment of а financiaI asset (Stage 2 оr
Stage З).

17. NoN-сURRENT ASSETS HELD FоR SALE

А5 of З1 DесеmЬеr 202З, the carrying amount of поп-счrrепt assets hetd for sale amounted to 155,691
thousand tenge (З1 December 2022: 155,691 thousand tenge). According to the aSsessment of ап
independent аррrаisеr, at the end of 2023, the market ча[че of поп-счrrепt assets held for sale
amounted to З40,606 thousand tenge (at the end of 2022: 359,862 thousand tenge). Non-current assets
held for ýа[е аrе assets that the Вапk has accepted as rерауmепt of debts оп loans granted to customers.
The Bank has developed ап implementation рtап based оп which the disposat of assets is р[аппеd Within
the next ,12 months, Nоп-сurrепt assets held for sale were recorded at the acquisition cost determined
at the time of the auction.

18. PRoPERTY, PLANT AND EQU|PMENT, lNTANG|BLE ASSETS AND RIGHT_oF-USE AssETs

The Bank leases ап office оп the basis of а lease contract Without the right to early termination. The
tеrm of the [ease is 60 months, with the option of extending the lease tеrm. Lease сопtrасts do not
include provisions for contingent lease рауmепt. The саrryiпg amount of right-of-use assets of the Bank
fоr the year ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 amounted to 177,'1ЗЗ thousand tenge (З1 December 2022: 222,177
thousand tenge). Amortization of the right-of-use assets for the уеаr ended З1 DесеmЬеr 202З inctuded
iп amortization in the statement of profit or loss and оthеr comprehensive iпсоmе amounted to 66,690
thousand tenge (2022: 52,087 thousand tenge). whеп calculating tiabitities оп lease, ап assumption was
used at а discount rate of 12.00%.

Futurе undiscounted lease payments payable чпdеr lопg-tеrm leases Ьу maturity are presented as
foItows:

з1.12.2023 з1.12.2022
Up to 12 months

1-5 years

Total

,t 20,481

160 641

109,389

255,z4z

з64 631

з4

z81 ,1?2
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19. oTHER ASSETS

spot transaction ctaims
charged penalties and fines
sett[ement of payments оп card accounts
other asýets

Рrочisiоп for expected credit tosses

Total other financial assets
Fее for software
Prepaid lease
Security deposit
other prepayments
Deferrals
other taxes prepaid iп budget
Receivabtes frоm emptoyees
other assets
Provision for expected credit losses

Total other поп-fiпапсiаl assets

Total other assets

Счrrепt accounts and deposit5 оп demand
- Retoil customers
- Соrроrаtе customers

Total сUrrепt accounts апd deposits оп demand
Теrm deposits
- Retoil custorners
- Соrроrаtе customers

Totat term deposits

Total счrrепt ассочпt5 and deposlts of cuýtomers

Blocked amounts

31.12.2023 з1.12.2о22
з27 ,15?
129, з52
78,626

5,290

1з8,795

5,159
55,772
з,804

(159) (1,7?!)

92,409
з1,505
zб,6з7
8,19з
6,301

6,1зб
2,378

21 174 12
,l11

(600) (482)

194 08з
7з4,з44 286,68 2

20. AccoUNTS AND DEPoS|TS оF BANKS

31.12.202з 31.12.2022
vostro accounts

Total accounts and deposits of banks 348,43 8 79,509

As of 31 December 2023 and З1 December 2022, accordingty, the Bank had по deposits with banks
exceeding 10% of the Bank's equity.

21 . сURRENT AccoUNTS AND DEPoSlTs оF cUSToMERs

31.12.202з з1.1?.?022

з0,zz4
?4,117
6,51 1

6,z87
3,596
?,417

A_s_of 3,1 December 2023, the deposits of the Bank's customers in the аmочпt of 115,522 thousand tenge
(З1 December 2022: 60,612 thousand tenge) serve aS cotlaterat fоr tiabilities оп toans granted to
сUstоmеrs and off-batance credit instrument provided Ьу the Bank.

concentration of счгrепt account5 and deposits of customers
As of 31 December 2023, the Bank has three customers (31 December 2022: six), whose accounts anddeposits.exceed ]0% of equity. The totat Ьа[апсе as of 31 DесеmЬеr 202з amounted to з86;915,568
thousand tenge (З1 DесеmЬеr 2022: 61,ь82,716 thousand tenge).

2,127,277 з,166,024

8 787 904 21 741 4з4
,l0,915,181 24,907,458

6,417,251 8,320,192
402 70з 00з 49 400

409 120 254 57

420,03 5 4з5 8?
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540,261 201,з06

8 5,3 76

з48,4з8 79,509

l62

720,з54

бz7,81?
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22. LOANS FROM BANKS

lп DесеmЬеr 2022, in ассоrdапсе Иth Master Agreement No. ,l dated 22.12,2008 made With Shinhan
Bank JSc (Seout, Repubtic of Коrеа), the Вапk obtained short-term lоапs:

10,000,000 US doltars maturing оп 02.02.202З at fixed interest rаtе of 4.З5%; and
20,000,000 U5 dollars mаtчгiпg оп 27.02.202З at fixed interest rate of 4.65%.

31.1 2.202з з1.1z.20?2

Balance at the beginning of the уеаr
Receipts

other changes

Total lоапs fгоm banks

23. LoANS FRoM lNTERNATIoNAL FlNANclAL oRGANlzATloNS

з1.12.20?3 з1.1z.zozz
Loan frоm EBRD

Total loans from internationaI financial organizations

7,02з,267 8,2з0,594

7,02з,?67 8,230,594

з7

SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 202З
(thousond Kozakhston tеп9е )

13,888,271
(14,и0,750) 1з,833,000

152,479 55,271

- 1з,888.271

lп 2016, thе Вапk entered into 2 lоап agreements With the Еurореап Bank for Reconstruction апd
Dече[орmепt, which were repaid as of З1.12.202З:

- Loan Agreement No. 47953 dated 28.06.2016 for the support of smalt апd medium-sized businesses
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to ,l5,000,000 U5 dottars, maturing оп 25.01 .202З; and

- Loan Аgrееmепt No. 47954 dated 28.06.201б for the development of 'Women in Business' project
iп the tепgе in the amount equivatent to 5,000,000 US dottars, maturing оп 25.0,1 .202з.

Each loan agreement provides for two tranches. lп accordance with the terms of the toan agreement, it
is роssiЫе to receive each trапсhе in two instalments. The first tranche and the first instalment of the
second trапсhе wеrе received during 2017 in the tenge, the remaining роrtiоп was received iп 2018.

lп 2020, the Bank signed 2 more toan agreements with the Ечrореап Вапk for Reconstruction and
Development:

- Loan Agreement No. 5079,1 dated 1З.02,2020 for the sчррогt of smatl and medium-sized businesses
in the tenge in the amount equivatent to 10,000,000 U5 do[[ars, Иth а maturity of the first tranche
Untit 29.09.2025, second tranche - untit 29.04.2027; and

- Lоап Аgrееmепt No. 50792 dated 13.02.2020 for the devetopment of 'Wоmеп in Business' project
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to 5,000,000 US dotlars, with а maturity date of the first
tranche until 29.09.2025, second tranche - Untit 29.04.2027.

The first tranche was received iп 2020 and the second tranche - in 2022.

lП 2021, the Bank signed 1 mоrе [оап agreement with the Ечrореап Вапk for Reconstruction and
DeveIopment:

- Loan Agreement No. 52817 dated 10.,12.2021 чпdеr the Grееп Есопоmу Fiпапсiпg Facitity (GЕFF)
рrоgrаm iп the tenge iп the amount equivalent to 5,000,000 US dot(ars, maturing оп 24.06,?027 ,

The fu[[ amount was received during 2022 iп the tenge,

lnterest_on the lоап is charged at а ftoating rate and is paid оп а quarterty basis in ассоrdапсе with the
terms of the agreement. At the end of the rероrtiпg period, the interest rаiе Under the Lоап Дgrееmепts
dated 28.06.2016 was '19.75%, and under the Loan АЪrееmепts dated 1з.02.202О it was Zо.iSи,Ъпо чпоеr
the Loan Agreements dated 1о.12.?о21 it was 22.6a%.

тhе.вапk is Оыigеd to compty with сеrtаiп financiat obtigations to соmр[у with the terms of thefundraising agreements presented 
.аьоче. These obtigations inctude stiputatbj ratibs usba-iol ilnanciat

реrfоrmапсе. Тhе Bank did поt viotate апу of these оЪtigаtiопs as of з1 DесеmЬеr 202з and 2022.
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МочеmепtS of liabilities due to financing activities

The tabte below shows the changes iп liabilities as а result of financial activities, inctuding both changes
due to cash flows and changes not related to cash flows. Liabitities due to financing activities are those
tiabilities the cash flows of which have Ьееп оr witt Ье ctassified as cash flows frоm financing activities
iп the statement of cash flows.

202з zO?z

Ваlапсе at the beginning of the уеаr
DjSpoSal

Receipt

0thеr changes

Ваlапсе at the end of the уеаг

'other changes include interest expenses апd pajd interest.

24. oTHER LlABlLlTlES

Liabilities оп tease
Liabitities оп sport transactions
Payables frоm SUpplierS
Banking transactions payable
0ther tiabilities
Total оthег financial liabilities

Settlement of taxes and other compUlsory payments in budget
Payables to employees
provision for leaves
other transit accounts
other tiabitities
Total other non-financial liabilities
Total оthеr liabilities

25.
(а)

(ь)

8,2з 0,594
(1 ,185,988)

(21,зз9)

4,797,176
(2,196,758)

5,582,600

47 ,57 6

7,оzз,z67 8,23 0,5 9 4

31 , 1 2,202з з1.1?.2022
244,500
з29,000
70,649
,l1,920

з07

296,796
138,624

84,706
34,210

5 169з

557 505

409,056
92,6з7
з9,44z
68,834

8,7 37

1 2 5,910
58,822
36,1 30
зз,807
2,845

618 706
815 019

SHARE CAP|TAL

lssued апd additional paid-up capital

The authorized, issued and outstanding share capital of the Bank consists of 1,002,872 ordinary Shares
(20Z2: 1 ,002,872 ordinary shares). А раr value of all shares amounts to ,l0,000 tenge.

Holders of оrdiпаry shares аrе entitled to receive dividends as they аrе dectared, as well as they have
the right to опе Vote per share at аппчаt and gепеrаl meetings of sharehotders of the Bank.

Еаrпiпgs per share

31.12.202з з1.12.?0zz
Net earnings for the уеаr

Quantity of issUed оrdiпаry shares

Earnings реr share

Basic and diluted еаrпiп8s реr share, tепgе

25,z17 ,705
1,001,872

3,з71,345

1,002,872

25 145.49 з61.69з

The Bank's ordinary shares аrе not traded in pubtic market, however, the Вапk has independently chosen
to disctose information оп the net earnings per share catculated in ассоrdапсе with thЁ requirebenb oflA5 З3 Earniлgs per shore.

з8

.-/

661,376

z57,514
1,280,082



(с) Provision for rечаlчаtiоп of financial assets at fair value through оthеr соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе
that are available for sale

Provision for revaluation of financial assets availabte fоr sale includes accumulated пеt сhапgе in fair
vatue untiI derecognition.

(d) DiИdend

The Bank's abitity to declare апd рау dividends is determined in ассоrdапсе With the requirements of
the Iegi5lation of the RepUbtic of Kazakhstan.

Dividend оп ordinary shares is recognized as а distribution of retained еаrпiпgs for the period for which
it is accrued. At the time of issue of the financial statements for 2023, по dividend has Ьееп dectared
yet (2022: по dividend has Ьееп declared).

26. RlSKMANAGEMENT

Risk management underlies banking activities and is ап essential element of the operating activities of
the Bank. Market risk, credit risk апd tiquidity risk are the mаiп risks that the Вапk faces iп the course
of its activities.

(а) Risk mапаgеmепt policies and procedures

Тhе Bank's risk mапаgеmепt policy is aimed at identifying, analysing and managing the risks to which the
Bank is exposed, at setting risk limits and related сопtrо[s, а5 well as at сопtiпчочslу assessing the levet
of risks and their сопfоrmапсе to the established timits. Risk mапаgеmепt policies and procedures аrе
reviewed оп а regular basis to reflect changes iп the market enYironment, banking products and sеrчiсеs
offered, and emerging best practices.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the рrореr functioning of the risk mапаgеmепt
control system, for managing key risks and аррrочiпg risk mапаgеmепt poticies апd procedures, as We[l
as for аррrочiпg mаjоr transactions.

The Management Воаrd of the Bank is responsibte for monitoring апd implementing risk mitigation
measures, as welt as ensuring that the Вапk conducts activities Within established risk timits, The
Management Board of the Bank is responsibte for очеrа[l risk manasement and сопtrоl of соmрliапсе
Иth the requirements of the current [egistation, as well as overseeing the application of general
рriпсiрtеs апd methods for identifying, assessing, managing and reportin8 both financiat and поп-
financiaI risks.

credit and market risks and tiquidity risk are managed апd controlled Ьу the credit committee and the
committee for Assets and Liabitities Мапаgеmепt (сALM) both at the [eve[ of the portfolio as а whole
and at the level of individual transactions.

Both external and internat risk factors are identified апd managed within the organization. Particutar
attention is paid to identifying the entire tist of risk factors and determining the tevet of sufficiency of
счrrепt risk minimization procedures.

lп addition to the standard analysis of credit and market risks, the Management Board of the Bank
monitors financial and поп-fiпапсiаt risks Ьу hotding regutar meetings with operating units in order to
obtain ап expert opinion оп individuat mапаgеmепt Boards.

(Ь) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in the fair value or future cash ftows of а financiat instrument due to
changes in market prices. Market risk consists of foreign exchange гisk, interest rаtе risk, as wetl as otherprice risks. Market risk arises frоm ореп positions in interest, счrrепry and equity financiat instruments
that аrе affected Ьу generat апd specific market movements and chinges in'th; tev;t bi mаrkеt рriс"volatility.

The objective of market risk mапаgеmепt is to mапаgе апd сопtrоt that exposure to market risk doesпоt go beyond acceptabte parameteБ, white ensuring- the optimization of tbe return reieived for therisk taken. The сALM headed Ьу the chairman is respoisibte fЫ ."пчgйg йчiК"t ."J iiq"йitу risks. The

;i*#o|.""", 
market and tiquidity risk timits baied оп rесоmmепdЪtiопs frоm tb" iiiK Mun"g"r"nt

з9

\чз:9./
SH|NHAN ВАNК KAZAKHSTAN JSC, NOTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS for the уеаr ended 3'l December 2023
( thоusапd Kazakhsta п te пgе )
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ов _/
The Вапk manages market risk Ьу setting [imits оп the ореп position in relation to the amount of the
portfolio fоr individuaI fiпапсiаl inStruments, the timing of changes in interest rates, счrrепсу position,
l'oss timits and regutar monitorin8 of their comptiance with the results to Ье reviewed and approved Ьу
the Мапаgеmепt Board.

(i) 
'nterest 

rote risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value оr future cash flows of а financial instrument Wilt change
due to changes iп market interest rates. The Вапk is exposed to the effects of ftuctuations iп the
prevaiting market interest rates оп its financial position and cash flows. Such ftuctuations may increase
the tече[ of interest margin, but mау also reduce it, or, in the ечепt of ап Unexpected сhапgе iп interest
rates, tead to losses.

lnterest rate risk is primarity managed Ьу monitoring changes in interest rates.

40
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( thousond Kozakhston tenge )

Ачеrа8е effective lnterest rates

The fottowing tabte presents ачеrаgе effective interest rаtе5 fоr iпtеrеst-Ьеаriпg assets and tiabititieS as
of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 and 2022:

2023
Average effective
interest rаtе, %

2о22
Average effective
interest rаtе, %

Tenge US dollar Тепgе US dollar
lntereýt-bearln8 assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits With banks
Financial assets at fair value through other соmрrеhеп5iче
iпсоmе
Loans granted to customers
Fiпапсiаl as5et5 at amortized cost

lпtеrеst-Ьеаrlпg liabilities
current ассочпts and deposits of banks

- Теrm dePosits
Loans from internationaI financiat organizations
Loans frоm banks

15.68
14.09

18.55

14,64

0.50

з.42

16.25

12.64

10.97

12. з1

3. з4

4.17

0.56

2.58 15,54

Analysis of sensitivity to сhапgе5 iп interest rates

lnterest rate risk management based оп interest rate review timing is comptemented Ьу sensitivity
monitoring of financial assets and tiabilities. The analysis of sensitivity of net income or [о55 and equity
of the Bank (tess taxes) to changes in interest rates (interest rate review risk) based оп а Simplified
scenario of а parallel shift of yietd curves Ьу 100 basis points towards increasing оr decreasing interest
rates and renegotiated positions оп interest-bearing assets and tiabitities effective as of З1 December
202З апd 2022 сап Ье presented as fotlows:

2023 20zz
Profit or loss Equity Profit оr loss Equity

100 basis point раrаltеt shift toward
decreasing rates
100 basis point parattet shift toward
jncreasing rates

The anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
vaIue through other comprehenSive iпсоmе/ avaiIabte for sate due to changes in interest rates (based оп
positions effective as of З'1 December 2023 and 2022 and а simptified scenario of а 100 basis point parattet
shift of yietd сUrчеs toward increasing оr decreasing interest rates) сап Ье presented as fotlows:

2023 2022
profit оr loss profit оr loss EqUity

(2,61 5 )

(з,777|

'100 basis point раrаllеt shift toward
decreasing rates
100 basis point parattet shift toward
iпсrеаsiпg rates

(ii) Fоrеigп ехсhапgе risk

The Bank has assets апd tiabitities denominated in severaI foreign cUrrencies.
Fоrеigп exchange risk is the risk of а сhапgе in the fair чаtче оr future cash flows of а financiat instrument
due to changes iп the сurrепсу ехсhапgе rates. Despite the fact that the Bank hedges its 

""jorur" 
toforeign exchange risk, such transactions do поt match the definition of а hedging r;taiibnship in

accordance with the lFRSS.

The structure of financiat assets and tiabitities in terms of сurrепсу as of з1 Dесеmьеr 202з сап Ьеrepresented as follows:

ь-

а

10.96

12,88

Equity

\ч

6,6

(104,598)

104,598

(75,588)

75,588

2,615

(З,277'|

4з
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AssETs
cash and cash eqUivalents
Accounts and deposits with
banks
Loans grапtеd to customers
Financial assets at
amortized cost
other financiaI aýsets
Total assets 454 158 346 18 121 205 666 30

теп Us dollar Eu rо other Total

з17,712,z80 18,0з1,169 205,666 30,з81 25з зз5,979,749

Russian
rочЬlе

167,057
184,910

48,115,117

зл,rri - -r,,,u "'ll3,1l1

184,910
47,948,060

88,107,686
205,410

524 з81 9 209 477 9z7 7zз

29,084

50,116 83
409,067,z95 18,767,zL 204,890 з?,0q4 11!,q!!,516
45,091,051 (243,126) 776 1,297 9,209 44,859,707

The structure of financiat assets and tiabitities in terms of сurrепсу as of 3'1 December 2022 сап Ье
represented as follows:

Russian
Гепgе US dollar Ечrо rouble other Total

AsSETs
cash and саsh eqUjvalents
Accounts and depositS With
bankS
Financial assets at ЕvтOсl
Loans granted to customers
Financial assets at
amortized cost
other financiaI assets

z?7,559 11,998 ?61 80,45з,806

146,661

Total assets 79,9з8,2z7 44,96?,706 227,559 11,998 261 175,140,751

LlABlLlTlEs
Accounts and deposits of
Ьапks
счrrепt accounts and
deposits of customers
Loans from internationaI
financiaI organizations
other financjal tjabitities
Total liabilities
Net position

LlABlLlTlEs
Accounts and depositS of
banks
current accounts and
deposits of customers
Loans from internationat
financial organizations
Loans from banks
other financial tiabitities

Total liabilities
Net position

1 3,888,271
76? 65 661

2з,159

40,1,409,692

7 ,0?з,267
611,177

32з,529

18,393,602

1,750

203,057

з48,4з8

420,0з5,435

7,02з,?67
661,з76

94,908
970,269

?z,014,114

?0,907 ,670
54,645

44,з17 ,з67

87 ,904

410,77 4

182,812
970,269

2?,424,888

?0,907,670
201,з06

41 ,66з

51,306,289

8,230,594

491

33,713

з1,059,071

4,113

250,028

79,509

82,627 ,812

8,2з0,594
13,888,271

557 50582

60,070 ,308 45,046,7?6 254,zзз 12,4z4 105,38з ,691
19,867 ,919 (84,020) (26 ,674| (426) 261 19,757 ,0 60

The impact оп pre-tax profit and equity based оп the va(ue of financiat assets is calcutated usingexchange rate lolatility anatysis. As of 31 DесеmЬеr 202з and 31 Decembei ztjzz, u..оБg ю ичmапаgеmепt of the Bank, the possiЫe movement of the сUrrепсу rate is ,l5%.

A_depreciation of the tenge as shown betow against the счrrепсiеs shown as of з,' December 20zз апd2022 woutd increase (decrease) equity. and рrБfit оr toss Ьу Йе amounts shown betow. This Йrуtiсаtinformation is presented tess tax апа ij based оп ftuctuations in'iurrency exchange rates, which the Bank
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considered as rеаsопаЬ[у possibte at the end of the reporting period. The anatyýis was carried oUt оп the
assumption that а[[ other variables, in particutar interest rates, remain unchanged.

20zз zozz
Ргоfit оr loss Equity Profit or loss Equity

(10,082)

(з,201)
(51 )

(с) credit гisk

Credit risk is the risk of financiat loss arising from а default оп obligations Ьу а borrower or counterparty
of the Вапk. Тhе Вапk mапаgеs credit risk (оп recognized financial assets and unrecognized contractuat
tiabitities) through the application of approved policies апd procedures, inctuding requirements fоr
setting апd keeping the credit risk сопсепtrаtiоп limits, as wet[ as through the establishment of а Credit
committee, whose functions include active mопitоriпg of credit risk. Тhе credit policy is reviewed and
approved Ьу the Воаrd of Directors.

The credit po[icy estab[ishes:

о procedures for consideration апd approvat of credit apptications;

. methods for assessing the creditworthiness of borrowers (corporate customers апd individuats);

о methods for assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties;

. methods for assessing the proposed cot[ateral;

. requirements for credit documentation; and

о procedures for опgоiпg monitoring of [oans and оthеr products Ьеаriпg credit risk.

Lоап app[ications from соrроrаtе customers are drafted Ьу the respective to customer ассоuпt managers
and thеп passed for consideration Ьу the Lending Division, Which is responsibte for the portfolio of loans
granted to legat entities. The rероrts of analysts of this Division аrе based оп а structurat anatysis of the
business апd financiaI position of а Ьоrrоwеr. Applications апd reports are then independentty reviewed
Ьу the Risk Мапаgеmепt Division, which issues the second opinion; at the same time, the proper
satisfaction of the requirements of the credit poticy is checked. The credit committee approves tоап
applications based оп documents provided Ьу the Lending Division, lntegrated Security Department,
CollateraI vaIuation Dераrtmепt, LegaI and Risk Мапаgеmепt DiviSions.

The Вапk constantly monitors the status of individuat loans and reassesses the solvency of its Ьоrrоwеrs
оп а rеgulаr basis. Reassessment рrосеdчrеs аrе based оп ап analysis of the borrower's financial
statements at the tatest rероrtiпg date оr other information provided Ьу the borrower itself or otheМise
obtained Ьу the Bank. At the same time, the decision to grant еасh toan is made Ьу the credit committee
after alt the necessary procedures hаче Ьееп compteted, which in tчrп atlows controtling the entire
credit process with а smalt пumЬеr of incoming applications.

lп addition to апаtуsiпg individual borrowers, the RiSk Мапаgеmепt Division assesses the tоап portfolio
as а whote in terms of concentration of tоапs and market risks.

The maximum level of credit risk is generatty reftected in the carrying аmочпt of financiat assets in the
statement of fiпапсiаl position and in the amount of unrecognized contractual tiabitities. The abitity to
offset assets and liabi[ities is not essentiaI to minimize potentiat credit risk.

or8anizations in the Ьапkiпg sector аrе gепеrаttу exposed to credit risk arising from financiat assets апd
contingent liabitities. The Bank's credit risk is concentrated in the RерчЫiс бf Kazakhstan. The degree
of credit risk is subject to constant monitoring in оrdеr to ensure compliance with credit timits and
creditworthiness in ассоrdапсе with the risk management poticy approved Ьу the Bank.
The maximum [eve[ of exposure to credit risk in retation to financial assets at the reporting date сап Ьеpresented as follows;

15% increase in Us dotlar/tenge rate
15% increase in Euro/tenge rate
15% iпсrеаsе in Russian rouble/tenge rate

(29,175)
93

156

(?9,175)
9з

156

(10,082)
(з,201)

(51)

45

а
Для

оiчёIов



з1.,! 2.202з з1 .1z.2ozz
AS5ETS

Cash and cash equivatents

Accounts and deposits with Ьапk5

Fiпапсiаt assets at fair value through other соmрrеhепsiче income
Loans granted to customers

Fiпапсjаt assets at amortized cost
other financiaI assets

Total maximum ехроsчrе to credit risk 47?,927,7zз 1z5,140,751

48,115,117

88,107,686

540,261

80,45з,806

182,812

970,269

?2,4?4,888

20,907,670

201,з06

Stage 1

Оп а 8rочр
basis

5ta8e z
Оп а 8rочр

basis

stage З

Оп а grоuр
basis

stage З

lndividually Totalз1 December 2023

31 December 2022

cash апd cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits With
banks
Financiat assets at ryTocl
Lоапs grапtеd to cUStomers
Financial assets at
amortjzed cost
other financial assets
Total assets

335,979,749

184,910
45,1 19, з87

зз5,979 ,7 49

1,094,6зб 107,769 1,793,з25
184,910

48,115,117

88,107,686
540 lo I

80,453,806

182,812
970,269

19 ,241 ,070 918,342 115,206 2,140,z70

20,907 ,670
201 з06

121 956 9зз 928 з42 115 206 2 770 125,l40

80,45 з,806

182,81 2

970,?69
7l,424,888

?0,907,670
201 306
140 751

Ап anatysis of collaterat оп [oans granted to customers апd the сопсепtrаtiоп of credit risk оп [оапs to
customers is presented in Note 15.

As of 31 December 202З, the Bank has по debtors (31 DесеmЬеr 2022: попе) whose exposure to credit
risk exceeds 'l0% of the maximum exposure to credit risk.

5igпifiсапt iпсrеоsе iп сrеdit risk
Тhе Bank monitors a[l of the financial assets that quatify for impairment requirements for significant
increases iп credit risk since i nitia l .rесоgпitiоп. lf а significant iпсrеаsе in crbdit пsk is detecied, the
Вапk calculates the amount of an attowance based оП ihe amount of credit losses expected ouring tПе
entire toan term апd not just the next 12 months.

The Bank uses estimates of credit risk as the main input iп determining the timing structure of theprobabitity of.default for exposures. The Bank collects performance and Ъefault info-rmation on credit
exposures analysed Ьу jurisdiction оr region, as Wett as Ьу product type апd Ьоrrоwеr, as welt as Ьу creditrisk classification. The information used is internat апd externi[ depending on tйЬ po.tibtio beingassessed.
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\чз в,r/

з35,979 ,7 49

184,9,10

cash and cash equivatents
Accounts and deposits with
banks
Loans granted to cUstomers
Financial assets at
amortized cost
other financiaI assets
Total assets

88,107,686
540,261

469,931,99з 1 ,094,636 107,т69 1,79з,зz5 4тz,9z7 ,7zз

Stage 1 stage 2 stage З

Оп а group Оп а grочр Оп а group Stage 3

basis basis basis lndividually Total
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The Bank uses various criteria to determine whether the credit risk реr portfotio of assets has increased
significant[y. Both quantitative апd quatitative changes in the probabitity of defauIt are u5ed as criteria.

Fоr [оапs granted that аrе measured coltectively, а significant increase iп credit risk is determined based
оп the iпсrеаsе in the probabitity of defautt over the entire [оап term after initiat recognition, Using
certain thresholds for segmented homo8eneous portfotios and for loans overdue mоrе than 30 days after
initiat recognition, Fоr loans that are measured оп ап individual basis, additionally in case of а decrease
in the externat / internal credit rating Ьу 2 (two) levels (рrеsепсе of restructuring in case of deterioration
of the financiat condition for classification in stage З), the expert opinions of the Bank's specialists are
based оп changes iп quatitative and quantitative indicators of а Ьоrrоwеr, significant deterioration in
collateral and other objective evidence of significant financiaI difficutties since initial recognition.

The third stage is determined for loans measured оп а coltective basis with ап overdue debt period
exceeding 60-90 days, for loans measured оп ап individual basis Иth ап overdue очеr 60 days,
restructuring associated With а deterioration in the financial condition, deterioration of the iпtеrпаl
credit rating апd expert opinion of the Вапk's specialists.

The Bank's mапаgеmепt believes that certain financiaI instruments with low credit risk did not have а
significant increase iп credit risk at the reporting date Ьу apptying this poticy to financiat instruments
issued опlу to sovereign and financial institutions. А financiat iпstrumепt is assumed to have а low credit
risk when the externat credit rating is equivalent to the definition of ап 'investment grade' Ьу the
internationaI rating agencies.

The Вапk has implemented mопitогiпg рrосеdurеs to епSUrе that the cгiteria used to determine а
significant increase in credit are effective, meaning that а significant increase iп credit risk is identified
prior to а risk default оr when ап asset becomes З0 days past due.

Рrой si оп of |оrwаrd - looki пg i пf оrmаti оп

The Bank uses foMard-tooking information, which is available Иthout undue cost оr effort, whеп
estimating significant increase in credit risk, as well as whеп estimating expected credit losses,

The inclusion of foMard-looking elements reflects the Bank's expectations. The Bank considers sсепаriоs
the пumЬеr of which depends оп the assessment of the tiketihood of imptementation, the significance of
this scenario, changing circumstances and the mасrоесопоmiс епчirопmепt.

The purpose of using scenarios is to modeI the non-tinear impact of mасrоесопоmiс factors оп expected
credit losses.

The Bank identified and documented the key indicators affecting portfotios of financiat instruments and,
using statisticaI analysis of historicat data, assessed the reIationship between mасrоесопоmiс variables
апd credit risk and credit [oss.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Вапk mау encounter difficu(ty iп raising cash to settte its tiabitities.
Liquidity risk arises whеп maturities of assets and liabilities do поt match. The matching апd/оr
controtled mismatching of the maturities апd interest rates of assets and tiabitities is fundamental to
tiquidity risk management. Due to the чагiеtу of transactions settted and retated uncertainty, the futt
matching of the maturities of assets апd tiabitities is поt а соmmоп рrасtiсе for financiaI institutions,
which makes it possible to iпсrеаsе the rеtчrп оп transactions, while increasing the risk of losses.

The Bank maintains the necessary tevet of tiquidity in оrdеr to ensure the constant availabitity of cash
necessary to settle att tiabitities as they fatt due. The (iquidity mапаgеmепt poticy is reviewed and
approved Ьу the Board of Directors. The Вапk strives to activety maintain а diversified and stabte
structure of funding sources consisting of tопg-tеrm loans from international financiat organizations,
short-term loans from other banks, deposits of major corporate customers and individuals, ls wett as а
diversified portfolio of highty tiquid assets to епаЬtе ihe Вапk to respond quickty without sudden
f[Uctuations to чпfоrеSееп tiquidity requirements.

The section of the соrроrаtе risk mапаgеmепt poticy, which relates to tiquidity risk management,
consists of:

, forecasting the cash ftows in the context of the main счrrепсiеs and the calcutation associatedwith these cash flows of the required tevet of tiquid assets;. maintaining а diversified structure of funding sources;
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. mапаgеmепt of the concentration and structure of borrowed funds;

. development of plans to raise funds using borrowed funds;

. maintaining а portfolio of highty liquid assets that сап Ье freety sold as а protective measure iп
case of cash tiquidity gap;

. developing rеsегче plans to mаjпtаiп tiquidity and set tечеt of fiпапсiпg; and

. exercising controt очеr the сопfоrmапсе of liquidity indicators to the tegatty estabtished standards.
The Тrеаsчry receives information from the divisions оп the tiquidity structure of their financial assets
and liabitities and оп forecasting the cash flows expected from the ptanned future business.

The Treasury then forms ап appropriate portfo[io of счrrепt liquid assets consisting рrimаritу of short-
term liquid secuгities held for trade, deposits ptaced Mth banks, and other interbank products, in order
to provide the necessary tevet of tiquidity for the Bank as а whote.

The Treasury monitors the tiquidity position оп а daity basis and carries out 'Stress tests' оп а regutar
basis taking into account а variety of possibte market scenarios чпdеr both поrmаl and adverse
conditions. Under поrmаl market conditions, liquidity rероrts аrе provided to the top management оп а
weekty basis. Decisions оп tiquidity management poticy аrе made Ьу the CALM and executed Ьу the
Treasury.

The following tables show the undiscounted cash ftows for financial assets, financial liabitities and
contingent credit tiabitities at the earliest contractuaI maturity date. The total receipts and disposals of
cash flows shown in these tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial aSsets,
liabilities оr contingent credit tiabitities. Еоr issued financiaI guarantee contracts, the maximum amount
of guarantees relates to the earliest period in which the guarantee сап Ье used.
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NOTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS for the year ended З1 DесеmЬеr 2023
( thousand Kazakh|tan tепgе )

27. cAPlTALMANAGEMENT

The RK NB sets and monitors compliance йth the Bank's capitat requirements.

The Bank attributes to equjty the items that аrе defined in ассоrdапсе with the legislation as items
constituting the capital of credit organizations. As of 31 DесеmЬеr 202З, the minimUm level of Tier 1

capital to the value of risk-weighted assets, сопtiпgепt tiabitities, ореrаtiпg and market risks is 0.075
(31 DесеmЬеr 2022: 0.075), and the miпimum level of total capital to the total of risk-weighted assets,
contingent tiabilities, ореrаtiпg апd market risks is 0.,l0 (31 December 2022: 0.10).

As of З1 December 202З and З1 DесеmЬеr 2022, the Bank met all regulatory capital requirements, With
Тiеr 1 capitat to risk-Weighted assets, contingent tiabitities, operating and market risks being 0.980 а5

of З1 DесеmЬеr 202З (З1 December 2022: 0.893), апd the lече[ of total capital to risk-weighted assets,
contingent tiabitities, operating апd market risks being 0.980 (31 DесеmЬеr 2022: 0.893).

28.

(а)

coNTlNGENT cREDlT LlABlLlTlES

Сопtiпgепt credit liabilities

The Вапk issues bank guarantees and орепs letters of credit in order to епSчrе the fulfilment of the
oЫigations of its customers to third parties. These agreements fix tiabitity limits and, as а ru[e, аrе valid
for чр to five years.

The Вапk appties the same risk management poticies and procedures iп issuing financiat guarantees,
contingent credit tiabitities апd letters of credit as it does in grantin8 loans to customers.

As of З1 December 202З, the Bank had outstandin8 contractuat contingent tiabitities in respect of the
provision of credit facilities in the amount of 7,860,511 thousand tепgе (З1 DесеmЬеr 2022: З,545,348
thousand tепgе) апd issued guarantees апd tetters of credit in the amount of 9З,699 thousand tenge (З1

DесеmЬеr 2022: 30,263 thousand tenge).

(Ь) Pendinglitigations

The mапаgеmепt is поt аwаrе of апу material actual or pending titigations, as wetl as potentiat claims
that mау Ье brought against the Вапk.

(с) lпsurапсе

The market of insUrance 5еrчiсеs in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan is at the stage of development, therefore,
mапу forms of insurance coverage used in other countries аrе поt yet available in the Republic of
Kazakhstan. Тhе Bank did not maintain fu[[ insurance of buitdings апd equipment, suspension of business
or in retation to the tiabitity of third parties fоr property оr environmental damage caused as а result of
the use of the Bank's рrореrtу.

The Вапk concluded the agreement of comprehensive insurance of banking risks against electronic and
computer сгimеs. The insurer is Nomad lпsчrапсе lc JSc. The agreement is vatid for 12 months from the
date of signing.

untit the Вапk adequately insures its activities, there is а risk that losses incurred and or toss of certain
assets mау have а materiaI adverse effect оп the activities and financiat position of the Bank.

(d) Тах liabilities
The tax System of Kazakhstan is retatively пеw and it is characterized Ьу frequent changes iп tegislation,
officiat ctarifications and сочrt decisions that are often чпс[еаr апd coniradictory, whiсъ altows for their
ambiguous interpretation Ьу various tax authorities, inctuding opinions regaiding the treatment of
income, ехрепsеs and other items of the financial statements iп ассоrdапсъ witБ lFRss. checks and
investigations regarding the соrrесtпеss of tax assessment аrе саrriеd out Ьу regutatory authorities ofdifferent levels, which hаvе the right to impose targe penatties and charge i;tей. ih; correctness of
tax. assessment in the reporting period сап Ье verified within the next iive саtепdаr years, however,
Under certain circumstances, this period mау Ье extended.
These circumstances mау lead to the fact that tax risks iп Kazakhstan witl Ье mчсh higher than in othercountries, Мапаgеmепt believes that tax tiabitities have Ьееп rutty ЙrесiЁа ii ihese financiatstatements based оп management's interpretation of appticabte tаi ru*i, Бйiiiчt-'соmmепts on
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regU(atory documents and decisionS of judiciat authorities. Ноwечеr, given the fact that interpretations
of tax laws Ьу various regulatory authorities may differ from opinion of the Bank's management, if
епfоrсеmепt action is taken Ьу the regulatory authorities, the impact оп the Вапk's financial statements
could Ье materia[.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACT|ONS

Controlling relations

The Bank's раrепt соmрапу is Shinhan Bank JSC (Seout, Repubtic of Korea). The parent соmрапу of the
Bank prepares the financiat statements avaiIab[e to externat users.

The Bank's Ultimate parent соmрапу is Shiпhап Fiпапсiаt Grочр Со. Ltd, which is authorized to direct at
its оwп discretion апd in its own interests the activities of the Вапk.

Тrапsасtiопs with members of the Board of Directors апd the Мапаgеmепt Board

The total remuneration included in 'Реrsоппеl Expenses' for the уеаrs ended 31 December 20zЗ and 2022
сап Ье рrеsепtеd aS follows:

202з z0?2

Board of Directors

Мапаgеmепt Board

11 ,865 7 ,864

з72 607 з21 156

з34 472 329,020

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, account balances and average interest rates on transactions with
members of the Board of Directors and Management Board amounted to:

statement of financial
position 202з

Average interest
rale, %

Ачеrаgе interest
zOzz rаtе

The amounts included iп profit or loss оп transactions with mеmЬеrs of the Board of Directors and the
Мапаgеmепt Board for the year ended 31 December mау Ье presented as fottows:

other assets

Счrrепt accounts and deposits
other tiabitities

statement of financial position
AssETS
cash and cash equivatents

- Ечrо
- other сUrrепсу

Loans granted to customer5
_ tenge

LlABlLlTlES

1,278
(4з,116)
51 214

0.98

1 ,44z
(58,915)

49з
1 .?6

20zzstatement of profit оr loss апd other comprehensive iпсоmе

Fоrеigп exchange gains /(tosses)
Fее income/(expenses)
lnterest ехрепsеs
other generat апd administrative ехрепsеs

раrепt bank

20zз

818
)11

60з
2,414

1 ,014
з11
766
бз9

(с) Transactions with other related parties
As of з1 Dесеmьеr 202з and 2022, account Ьаlапсеs and the corresponding aYerage interest rates, as
wett as the corresponding profit оr loss оп transactions иth other retateJ раrtiеЪ for the уеаr tЬеп
ended, amounted to:

оthег related parties
АYеrаgе АYеrа8е

2023 interest rate % 2023 interest rаtе

16,27з
25з

1 6.9112, з98,0з9

5з

Для /
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Accounts апd deposits of Ьапks

- tenge
- U5 dottar
- Ечrо

current accounts and deposits of
customers

- tenge
- Us dottar

other tiabitities
. tenge
- U5 doltar

ltems not recognized in the statement of
fiпапсiа[ position

Received guarantees'

- tenge
- US dоltаr

credit faci[ities

statement of ргоfit or loss and other
соmргеhепsiче income

lпсоmе frоm fоrеigп сUrrепсу
transactions

lnterest income

lnterest expenses

Fее income
Fее expenses

Оthеr gепеrа[ апd adminiStrative
expenses

statement of financial position
ASsETs
cash and cash eqUivalents

- ЕUrо
- other счrrепсу

Loans granted to customers
- tenge

LlABlLlTlES

Accounts and deposits of Ьапk5
- tепgе
- US doltar
- ЕUrо

23,159
32з,529

,1,750

4,496
з0,304

3,400,000

5,409,?64

526,з17
509

,1,500,000

2,500,080

30,000,000

5.98
0.41

раrепt bank other related parties
Average Ачеrаgе

zoz3 interest rate 2023 interest rate

467

з,з17
32,58з

5,599

858,800

175,749

8,675
131,566

88, з05

'Ь of 29 DесеmЬеr 202З, guarantees received include guarantees iп the tenge апd the US dotl,ars рrочidеd Ьу the
parent bank апd for lоапs granted to corporate c[ients. The guarantees are interest-free, the expiration date of the
guarantees is 25 Aprit 2024, 17 JUne 2024, 5 october 2026, and 30 December 2026. Guarantees receiYed from other
related parties jnctude the gUarantees in the tenge рrоИdеd Ьу а соmрапу belongjng to Shinhan Financial Grочр Со.
Ltd, and for [oans granted to its subsidiary iп Kazakhstan. The gUаrапtееs are interest-free and the guarantees expire
оп 2З August 2024 апd 22 March 2024.

parent bank Оthеr related parties
Ачеrаgе

2022 interest rate zoz2 interest rate %%

1,476,161 14.96

41,66з
зз,723
4,1zз

lQAIAQ:',;N,

\gflt,/

119

Ачеrаgе

112,5з7
261
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в}'/
current accounts and deposits of
customers

- tenge
- US dottar

Loans from banks
- U5 dоtlаг

other liabitities
. tenge
- U5 dottar

ltems поt recognized in the statement of
financial Position
Received gчаrапtееs'

credit facitities

Statement of profit оr loss and other
соmрrеhепsiче income

lпсоmе from foreign currency
transaction5

lnterest income

lnterest ехрепsеs

Fее iпсоmе
Fее ехрепsе5

other gепеrаt and administrative
ехрепsеs

1з,888,271

25,260
60,479

з,816, з85

445,52з
26,678

11?

1 ,500,000

100,000,000

5.9
0.5

4.5 5

раrепt Ьапk other related parties
Avera8e Ачеrа8е

zoz2 interest rate 2022 interest rate

7 ,z08 2,890

182,592

27 ,870
5,864
5,485

8,871

з,980
195,451

78 584

" Guarantee received from other retated parties includes the guarantees in the tепgе issued Ьу а соmрапу from the
8rочр of Shjпhап FinanciaI Grочр Со. Ltd, for loans granted to its Subsidiary in Kazakhstan. Guarantees are interest-
free, guarantees expire оп 2З August 2024 and 22 Маrсh 2024.
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/ The fair value mеаsurеmепt aims to determine the рriсе that woutd Ье received from 5а[е of ап asset or
paid to transfer tiabitities in ап organized market transaction between the market ptayers at the
measurement date. However, given the чпсеrtаiпtу and the use of subjective judgment, fair value shou[d
not Ье interpreted as realizable aS part of ап immediate sale of assets оr а transfer of tiabitities.

The fair чаlче of financiat assets and financial tiabitities traded iп active market is based оп market
quotations or dealer prices. The Bank determines the fair value of all other financial instruments of the
Bank using the other valuation methods.

The valuation methods include models for estimating net present чаtче and discounting cash flows,
comparing them With simitar instruments for which market quotations аrе kпоwп. Judgments and data
used fоr estimating include risk-free and uпdеr[Ипg interest rates, credit spreads and оthеr adjustments
used to estimate discount rates, Share and bond quotations, foreign exchange rates, stock indices, as
well as expected ргiсе fluctuations апd their comparison. The valuation methods аrе aimed at
determining the fair value, which reflects the vatue of а financiaI inStrument at the reporting date, which
wou[d Ье determined Ьу independent market players.

The mапаgеmепt used an assumption at а discount rate of '19,47% ап d 21 .9З% (2022: 17.80% and '18.82%)

to discount future cash ftows frоm mеаsчrеmепt of the fair value of tenge loans granted to corporate
customers and tоапS granted to retait customers, respectivety, and 6.80% (2022: 5.20%) to discoUnt future
cash flows from measurement of the fair vatue of US doltar toans granted to corporate customers.

(Ь) Fаir value hierarchy

The Bank mеаsчrеS fair value using the fottowing fair vatue hierarchy taking into ассочпt the materiality
of the data used in making these measurements.

. Levet ,l: active market quotations (Unadjusted) for identical financial instruments.

. Level 2: Data, other than Levet 1 quotations, avaitab[e either directly (i.e. quotations) or
indirectty (i.e. data derived from quotations). This category inctUdes instruments measured using: market
quotations iп active markets for identica[ instruments, market quotations for identicat instruments iп
markets not considered to Ье active, or other valuation methods, alt of whose data аrе directty or
indirectly based оп observable inputs.

. Level з: data that is поt avaitabte. This category includes iпstгumепts measured using information
not based оп observable inputs, Where such uпоЬsеrчаЬ[е inputs have а significant impact оп
measurement of ап instrument. This cate8ory includes instruments measured based оп quotations for
identical instruments and require the use of 5ignificant unobservable adjustments оr judgments to reflect
а difference between the instruments.

The Вапk has а сопtrоt system iп retation to the fair ча[че measurement. This system includes the Risk
Mana8ement Department, which is independent from the management of the front office and reports to
the chief Fiпапсiаl officer, and which is responsible for the independent verification of the trading and
investment performance, as wetl as all materiat fair value measurements. Special сопtrоl mechanisms
inctude:

. verification of observable quotations;

. recatculation according to valuation modets;

, process of verification and approval of new models and changes to models Иth the participation
of the Risk Management Department;

, qUаrtеrlу vatidation апd back-testing of the modet against observabIe market transactions;
. analysis and study of Significant daity changes in estimates; and

' review ЬУ the МаПаgеmеПt Board of significant unobservable data, valuation adiustments andsignificant changes in the measurement of fаir vatue of the instrument, iitrib"t"ыb to Level з а5opposed to the previous month.

Whеп using third party information, inctUdin8 information about prices and market quotations of brokers,to mеаsurе а fair value, the credit products controt Department evaluates and documents confirmationýreceived from third parties iп order to confirm the conclusion tb"t ,uib- й"iiчrъ'mепв meet ttrerequirements of lFRSs, inctuding:

58



SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC
NoTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANclAL STATEMENTS fоr the уеаr ended 31 December 202З
( thouso пd Kozakhs to п te п9е )

. confirmation that information about prices оr market quotations of Ьrоkеrs is approved Ьу the
Bank for use in pricin8 the financial instruments;

. ап understanding of how а fair value is mеаsчrеd to the extent that it represents actual market
transactions;

. cases where quotations fоr identicat instruments аrе used to measure а fair ча[че, determining
how those quotations have Ьееп adjusted to reflect the characteгistics of the instrument being
measured; and

. cases of using а number of quotations for identicat fiпапсiаl instruments, determining how а fair
vaIue is measured using these quotation5.

significant issues re[ated to the mеаsчrеmепt аrе Ьrочght to the attention of the Мапаgеmепt Board.

Тhе tаЫе below provides ап analysis of financial instruments reported at fair value as of 3'1 DесеmЬеr
2023 апd 2022, Ьу levels of the fair vatue hierarchy. Тhе amounts are based оп thе amounts shown in
the statement of financiaI position.

LeYel 2

31 .,1 z.20zз з1.12.7021
Financial assets at fаiг value through other
соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе
- debt securities 970,269

The tables below provide ап analysis of the fair value of financial instruments поt measured at fair value
as of 3,1 DесеmЬеr 2023 апd 2022, Ьу tevets of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 3 Fair value carrying аmочпtLevel 22023

Financial assets

Accounts апd deposits with banks

Loans granted to cUstomers

Fiпапсiаt assets at amortized cost

other financial assets

Flnancial tiabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks

current accountS апd deposits of
customers

Loans from internationat fjnancial
organizations

other financiat tiabitities

z0?2
Financial a5sets

Accounts and deposits with banks

Loans granted to cUstomers

Financial assets at amortized cost
0ther financial assets

184,910

45,144,5з4

87,541,з6]

540,261

184,910

48,115,117

88,107,686

540,261

1 3 3,41 1,068 1 33,41 1,068 136,947 ,974

348,438

420,0з 5,4з 5

7,02з,267

661 ,з7 6

7 ,02з,?67
661 ,з7 6

7 ,02з,267

661 ,37 6

з48,4з8 348,438

420,0з5,4з5 420,035,4з5

428,068,516 428,068,516

Level 2 Level З Fair value Сагrуiпg amount

,182,812

24,6з0,850

19,986,94з

201,306

182,812

22,424,888

20,907,670

201,з06
45,001 911 45,00,T,911 4з,716,676

79,50979,509 79,509
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Financial liabllities
Accounts and deposjts of banks

184,910

45,144,5з4

87,541,збз

540,261

428,068,516

182,812

24, бз0,850

19,986,943

201,з06
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\о;чё;ов
zozz
Сurrепt accounts and deposits of
customers

Loans f rоm international financiaI
organizations

Loans from banks

other financial tiabitities

Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Сагryiпg аmочпt

8z,627,812 82,627,81? 82,6?7,81?

8,230,594

1з,888,271

557,505

8,2з0,594

1з,888,271

557,505

8,230,594

13,888,271

557,505

105,з8з,691 105,з83,691 105,383,691

Levet 1: cash апd cash equivatents as of 31.12.2023i ЗЗ5,979,749 thousand tenge (З1.'12.2022:
80,45З,806 thousand tenge).

31 . EVENTS АFТЕR ТНЕ BALANCE SHEET DATE

Under the loan agreement signed With the EBRD at the епd of zO2З under the YiB рrоgrаm iп the amount
of 8 mittion US dоttаrs, in Маrсh 2024, the Bank attracted 1 tranche in the amount of 4 mitlion US dol(ars.

There аrе по other events at the Bank that occurred prior to the date of approvat of the financial
statements that woUtd require adjUstment оr disclosure jn the notes to the financial statements.
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